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Nando's Group Holdings Limited
Annual report and statutory consolidated financial statements
23 February 2020
Company registered number 06451677
STRATEGIC REPORT

Highlights
Financial highlights for the period ending 23 February 2020

* Revenue up by 4.2% to £1,095.4m (2019: £1,051.1m) driven by organic growth in our key markets.

+ Underlying operating profit (excl. impact of IFRS 16 and pre-exceptional items) down by 5.7% to £39.5m (2019:
£41.9m)} driven by above-inflation increases in National Living Wage in the UK and continued investment in the
international business.

= Capital investment increased to £97.4m (2019: £87.9m) as we continued to expand our footprint by opening 48
new restaurants, taking the total to 958 during the year, maintained the existing estate and invested in new
technology.

Post financial year-end events

= The trading impact of Covid-19 is not reflected in these financial statements. Since the year end, the pandemic
has had a significant negative impact on our operations inciuding the complete closure of all our restaurants in
the UK during the national lockdown. The external landscape continues to be subject to change across our
markets as a result of government interventions in relation to the pandemic.

» We have taken rapid and decisive action to protect colleagues and customers and to preserve cash and liquidity
including a dramatic reduction in capex, salary reductions for senior management, reductions in rent, negotiating
a pre-emptive waiver for our bank covenants and raising £100m in new equity from our parent company as a
prudent measure to strengthen the balance sheet.

= We are grateful for the support of governments in our Covid-impacted markets. In the UK employees were put
on furiough during the peak of the pandemic. We subsequently re-opened all but a handful of our UK restaurants,
giving restaurant employees the option to return to work should they wish.

» The trading impact of Covid-19 has been reflected in our future financial projections and this was the main factor
in a non-cash, exceptional goodwill and asset impairment charge of £62.1m for the period ended 23 February
2020.

« As we continue to navigate the effects of the global pandemic, current trading across our international footprint
remains mixed. However, we remain confident in our long-term growth trajectory, underpinned by continued
strong customer demand for our PERiI-PERi Chicken, a growing range of innovative new menu items, improved
technology and new channels to market through which we can serve our customers. This includes an acceleration
of our digital strategy, through the formation of an innovative new delivery partnership with Deliveroo in the UK
and the abitity to order at table via a Nando's app, to support social distancing and customer safety.

Environmental, social and governance (ESG) highlights

- Across the globe, we have supported our Covid-impacted markets as part of our long-standing commitment to
be part of the communities in which we operate, donating over 1million meals to healthcare workers and the
needy across the US, the UK and Australia. As part of these efforts we donated over 54,000 meals to NHS
workers in the UK, building on our 20 year partnership supporting the NHS and a further 80,000 meals via our
partnership with Fareshare.

« Qur sustainability commitments further accelerated as Nando's UK became the first restaurant group in Europe
to adopt approved Science Based Targets to further reduce carbon emissions.

« Nando’s UK also signed the Better Chicken Commitment, pledging to fully implement higher standards of animal
welfare to ensure stronger, healthier chickens in our supply chain by 2026.



Rob Papps, Group Chief Executive of Nando's commented:

“Nando’s had a robust financial year in line with our expectations. During the year we continued to grow our
revenue in very competitive markets, invest for the future and make strong progress with our digital strategy,
including the development of app-based and cnline platforms. Since the financial year end, the Covid-19
pandemic has significantly impacted our trading and we have taken decisive action to protect our balance sheet.
Throughout this crisis our priority has been to help our people and communities, and we are proud that we have
been able to donate over 1 million meals to hospitals and emergency services across the world as part of our long-
term community partnerships.

We are grateful to governments for their support, and are pleased to have re-opened alf but a handful of our UK
restaurants, giving restaurant employees the option to return to work should they wish.

Whilst the current period remains extremely challenging, we remain confident in the long-term prospects for the
business, underpinned by customer demand for our PERi PER! chicken, continued innovation and growth in
digital channels to better serve our customers.”

The directors present the Strategic Report, Directors’ Report and the audited financial statements for the 52-week
period ended 23 February 2020.

Values and engagement

Nando's believes its purpose is to change lives. We tiy to do this through the business — driving social impact by
developing and then, critically, embedding programmes into our everyday operations, specifically people,
communities and supply chain. We believe this enhances our efforts — building programmes sustainably, which
resonate with employees and customers over the long term and activate the business as a force for good in
society.

Our most important resource remains our people. We have articulated the behaviours that support our values of
pride, passion, courage, integrity and family, and have instilled these into everything we do — our recruitment,
training, development and reward structures. This philosophy extends to the communities in which we operate:

» The impact of the Covid-19 pandemic has been seen across the world, including in all the markets in which
Nando's operates. As a business with a longstanding commitment to make our restaurants an important part of
every community, Nando's pledged early in the pandemic to mobilise our global teams and hefp those most in
need. We are proud to have worked hard and served that effort to make a positive impact:

o in the US, Nando's introduced the largest community service program in our history and
donated more 100,000 meals te nurses, doctors and healthcare workers fighting the pandemic.
The Standing Together, 6 Feet Apart program was part of our commitment to stay open to keep
our employees paid and to provide free meais to healthcare workers on the frontline.

o In Australia, we donated $500,000, the cost of one million food bank meals, to Foodbank, which
provides relief to over 815,000 needy people each month. In just four weeks, Nando's saw
618,000 meals provided to vulnerabie Australians. We are glad that through this initiative, we
have been able, in partnership with our customers, to help those who may be struggling due to
the health crisis.

o In the UK, Nando's donated 54,000 free meals in total to NHS workers during the pandemic. As
well as participating in the UK government's Eat Out to Help Out scheme to give all customers
50% off all food and soft drinks up to £20 when dining in, Nando's also decided to pass on the
government’'s VAT reduction to ali our customers in the form of lower prices. This was effective
across the whole menu (except aicohol) and we were pleased to offer this across dine-in, online
collection and delivery orders as a thank you to our customers who have continued to show great
loyalty to Nando's.

o The health, safety and peace of mind for our customers is a priority for us across the world. We
ensured our restaurants were ready to welcome customers back as restrictions eased in various
parts of the world. In the UK we invested over £20 million into new safety measures in our
restaurants, to prepare them for re-opening.

o Our people have been at the heart of all of these initiatives, and we are immensely proud that
we were able to help essential workers, particularly those on the front lines of healthcare systems
around the world, those in need, and our own people during this difficult time.



« Our No Chuekin' Our Chicken program is aimed at stopping unnecessary food waste. The program provides
excess food fram our restaurants to those who need it most in the communities in which we operate. We are
proud that since its launch in the UK in 2013, Nando's has reached the milestone of 2 million donated meals to
local charities.

» Building on No Chuckin’ Qur Chicken, Nando's ailso launched this year a new food donation and employment
program, aimed at helping vulnerable young people and families acress some of our regions, including the UK
and the US.

o In the UK, the Fuel Your Future program is designed to make lasting impact for disadvantaged
young people. The program aims to help with both the immediate need for free meals, and most
importantly a long-term impact on the lives of disadvantaged young people, through supporting
their futures with employment opportunities.

o in the US, as a continuation of our focus on inclusive hiring, we partnered with Generation,
whose mission is to close the skills gap for young people, empowering them to build thriving,
sustainable careers. The partnership centres on recruitment of young people from disadvantaged
backgrounds, who typically would not find their way into the formal job market. Over the year of
our partnership, we have placed approximately 90 young people into full time work.

= Nando's is continuing our work with our PERiI Farms in Mozambigue, Malawi, Zimbabwe and South Africa,
where 100% of our African PERI-PERI chillies come from and where we make an enormous difference to the lives
of many small-scale farmers through access to the latest farming techniques, quality seedlings and finance. Since
the launch of the program in 2015, we are now working with ¢. 1,200 farmers across 12 regions, supporting alt
Nando's markets. We provide the farmers with a fixed outlay for their crop and pay a premium for every kilogram
of chillies harvested. Nando's is also building education, experience and innovation across these regions,
investing in people to broaden their farming capabilities. The initiative is being extended to cover more ingredients
and across a wider geography, and our initial trials with cayenne pepper and paprika have been successful.

« Cur Portal to Africa initiative was established in 2012 and digitally connects our global restaurant network to
smatl, emerging Southern African artisans, furniture makers and crafts people. It was created to support Scuth
African design and furniture-making industries by showcasing South African designers on a purpose made portal.
The portal helps young designers set up and grow their ideas and business and is accessible by all our
restaurants, which can commission specific works. Having been designed from scratch, the impact has been
significant, with over 60 designers featuring on the portal at year end. We also continue to source new talent
through the 'Hot Young Designer’ platform and industry days.

* Nandeo's UK is the first restaurant group in Europe with an approved Science Based Target, which are targets
that are in line with the latest climate science outlining what is necessary to meet the geoals of the Paris
Agreement. We are committed to achieving these targets by an absolute reduction in emissions, as opposed to
carbon offsetting. Since 2015, we've already successfully reduced the carbon footprint of the average Nando's
meal by 40%. Nando's has committed to achieving absolute zero direct carbon emissions and further reducing
the carbon footprint of an average Nando’'s meal by 50% by 2030. We will achieve the additional reductions by
warking with our suppliers to support them on reducing their own carbon footprint, especially working with chicken
suppliers and experts in the industry, such as Sustainabie Restaurant Association and Soil Association, to
reduce the carbon footprint of chicken feed and increasing our plant-based menu offering. We already use 100%
renewable electricity and will switch to 100% renewable gas by 2022 to eliminate our direct emissions.

» Additionally, we have signed the Better Chicken Commitment, pledging to fully implement higher standards of
welfare to ensure stronger, healthier chickens by 2026. We are working with suppliers and industry groups in
partnership with farmers, investing in research and using a naturally slower growing breed of chicken in our
supply chains. This builds on our long-standing commitment to meeting Red Tractor Standards and, in the UK,
always serving 100% British chicken which is fresh, never frozen.



Principal activities

The principal activity of the Group in the year under review was that of operating fast casual dining restaurants
(both cempany-owned and franchise) and the sale and distribution of branded sauces and condiments through
the retail channel. The principal activity of the Company was to act as a holding company for the Group's
consolidated business.

About Nando's

The Nando's restaurant experience is at the heart of our business, and customers receive a warm welcome from
our friendly employees (‘Nandocas'). With each restaurant boasting its own unique ambience and ariginal
Southern African works of art, our legendary flame-grilled PERI-PERI chicken is served in an atmosphere that
sounds, looks and feels distinctively Afro-Portuguese.

We have a saying: “Nando’s is not just about the chicken. It's never been just about the chicken. it's about the
people who make the chicken”. Driven by our values and behaviours which seek to embrace diversity, celebrate
informality and realise talent, our Nandocas are our most important asset. Thanks to our unigue cuiture, based en
values of pride, passion, courage, integrity and family, our Nandocas feel part of more than just a restaurant
group and are encouraged to be the best they can be.

Qur business model is to give our customers a consistently excellent Nando's experience through the delivery of
operational excellence from Nandocas who are empowered to do that.

Financial performance

The financial highlights include comparisons of the current year results pre-IFRS 16 adjustments and pre-
exceptional items to the prior year results as set out below.

2020 2020 2020 2020 2019
Total as Reversing Reversing Total pre-IFRS Total as Variance:
reported impactof exceptional 16 and reported
IFRS 16 items  exceptional
items
£m £m £Em £m £m £m)
Revenue 1,095.4 - - 1,095.4 1,051.1 443
Operating {4.7) (17.9) 62.1 395 41.9 (2.4)
profit / {(loss)

Overall, we delivered a robust performance in line with our expectations as we grew revenue in very competitive
markets and continued to invest for the future.

Revenue increase by 4.2% as we grew operations in the UK, Australia and the US. There is significant growth
potential in all our markets and we will continue to invest in opening new restaurants. Underlying operating profit
of £39.5m (excluding the impact of IFRS 16 and pre-exceptional items) was down by 5.7%, reflecting the above-
inflation increase in National Living Wage in the UK and continued investment in the international business.
Group capital investment ("Capex"), defined as the cash investment in tangible, intangible and equity accounted
investments and business combinations, during the year was £97.4m (2019: £87.9m), in line with our strategy to
invest in extending our global restaurant footprint and refurbishing existing restaurants, technology and systems
where necessary.

Net financing expense before impacts of IFRS 16 decreased by £3.9m to £63.2m (2019: £67.1m). The Group
made a loss before tax for the year under review of £99.4m (2019: £25 2m). Before the impacts of IFRS 16 and
exceptional items, the loss before tax for the year was £23.7m, a decrease of £1.5m in comparison to the prior
year. The income tax expense incurred by the Group during the year was £13.2m (2019: £13.1m). The Group alse
contributes further direct and indirect taxes including social security, property taxes, local taxes and value added
taxes.

At year-end, the Group had net liabilities of £11.9m (2019: net assets of £103.3m). This is largely driven by
impairments of goodwill and other assets of £62.1m (see note 7. Exceptional items) and the impact of IFRS 16
reducing net assets by £13.4m. Without these adjustments, the Group would have had net assets of £63.6m.



IFRS 16 adjustments

The Group has adopted IFRS 16, the new lease accounting standard, since 25 February 2019 using the modified
retrospective approach. Accordingly, the Group has not restated its prior periods therefore the results for 2020 are
not directly comparable to the result of 2019. To aid comparability, the financial highlights above have been
presented with and without the impact of [IFRS 16 for 2020. More details can be found in Note 1.3.

Exceptional items

Covid-19 has not impacted the trading results for the period ended 23 February 2020. However, the impact of
Covid-19 has been assessed and the group has prepared financial forecasts incarporating this impact and the
Government enforced lockdown as well as the anticipated slow recovery to pre-Covid-19 trading levels. These
forecasts have been used to evaluate the value of assets within the group, and this assessment was the main
factor in causing an impairment of Goodwill and other assets. The Covid-19 impact is considered to be an
extraordinary event and will be disclosed as an exceptional item. Again to aid comparability, the financial
highlights above have been presented with and without the impact of these exceptional items. More details can be
found in Note 7.

The average number of empioyees during the year has grown from 21,145 in 2018 to 22,412 in 2020.
The results for the year and the financial position of the Group are disclosed on pages 17 to 21.

Qur Strategy

Cur strategy is to add value through investing for profitable and socially responsible growth.

We aim to achieve this through:

* A globally defined, unique and distinctive brand;

* A cohesive and expanding international business;

= High-quality products and exemplary service to our customers;

= Protecting the future of the Group by pursuing innovative growth opportunities and prudent risk management;
« Greater engagement with our digital consumer through investment in technology; and

* Reinforcing our values and employee engagement.

The actions needed to deliver this strategy are predicated on creating an environment where Nandocas can have
fun and are given the opportunity to realise their talent - a place where our Nandocas want to work.

Operational highlights

The strength of our brand, core values, and unique customer experience have been key to the long-term
development of Nando’s business, and in recent years, we have sought to professionalise our operations, while
retaining the entrepreneurial spirit that made us successful. There have been several initiatives which have
helped us achieve our strategic aims.

Brand Strength

Each market has a brand plan focused on delivering consistent and aligned messaging, and international brand
health is measured across all our key markets and our major franchised markets at least once ayear on a
consistently executed brand health tracker.

We have made strong progress with our digital strategy, investing in the ongoing development of app-based and
online platforms. This helps us to make the customer journey easier, as well as enabling a ‘sing'e view' of our
customers and how they interact with Nando's so we can better meet their needs.

Infemational expansion

The number of restaurants in operation increased from 936 at 24 February 2019 to 958 at 23 February 2020. This
total includes the 773 (2019: 740) company-owned restaurants and 185 (2019: 196) restaurants run on a
franchise basis.

Key markets for the Group include the United Kingdom, Ireland, USA, Canada, India, Australia, New Zealand,
Malaysia and Singapore. Qur franchise cperated markets include the United Arab Emirates, Saudi Arabia and
Qatar in the Middle East, and multiple countries in Southern Africa.

Capex for the year was £97.4m, reflecting the Group's strategy to expand its international footprint and refurbish
its existing network. Nando's restaurant design continues to win awards across the globe.



Operational excellence

Nande's flame-grilled PERI-PERI chicken remains at the core of what we deliver. Around the world, our food
teams are fully aligned behind one food manifesto, ensuring that our food offer is consistently and excellently
executed across all markets.

Nando's continually drives innovation through new menu ideas, service models, and technology.

Principal risks and uncertainties

The directors recognise that Nando's is exposed to a number of risks which directly affect the overall performance
of the Group. Risks identified are reviewed in detail to ensure the appropriate processes are adopted to manage
and mitigate them. The key business risks are set out below:

Health and safety

Maintaining excellent heaith and safety standards in the development and operation of our restaurants is central
to our business. The health and safety of gur Nandocas, our customers and our contractors are of primary
importance to Nando's. We achieve this by sefting the highest standards of health and safety and performing
restaurant audits to ensure we maintain our high standards. This ensures every meal served in Nando's is
prepared in a safe environment and is safe to eat.

Employees (Nandocas)

Our Nandocas are our greatest asset; failure to attract and retain the best people would be detrimental to both the
Nando's experience and our brand reputation. In an industry which traditionally has high staff turnover, Nandocas
are key to the Group's continued development.

Numerous training and growth opportunities exist at all levels — both within restaurants and central support
functions. These are designed to not only motivate, develop and retain employees, but o empower them to be the
best they can be. Wherever possible, we promote fram within and believe strongly in recognising and rewarding
Nandocas. We also helieve in playing as hard as we work, so fun days, conferences, outings and team charity
work also feature in the mix.

Product

Our cammercial teams continuously develop new products to maintain an exciting and varied menu. Seasonal
changes are taken inte account, as are market-related requirements, for example, in the Middle East, we offer
non-alcehalic designer drinks, while in India we have a larger than usual vegetarian offering. This ongeing facus
on menu innavation throughout the Group has allowed us to successfully launch a range of new products, tapping
into new occasions and consumer segments and an ongoing need for variety.

The key arrangements the Group has in place with several raw material suppliers are constantly reviewed and
monitored to ensure quality standards remain high.

Competition

The Company cperates in a competitive and fragmented market, one that constantly brings new concepts and
products to an ever-expanding customer base.

We believe that customers’ interactions with Nandocas, the restaurant designs, ambience and superior quality
food all combine te create a unique experience ~ one which gives Nando's a strong competitive advantage. By
focusing on the innovation of our products and service, as well as proactively meeting the needs of our
customers, we are ¢onfident of not only maintaining but also growing our market share.

Working capital, liquidity. other risks

The Group continually monitors cash flow and forecasts the maturity of financial liabiliies. To protect the balance
sheet in light of ongoing uncertainty in the trading environment due to the Covid-19 pandemic, the Company
raised £100m in equity from its immediate parent. Further discussion on how these risks are managed is provided
in the Directers’ Report, Note 29 and Note 35.



Economic Uncertainty

The Group is exposed to the risk of economic uncertainty in the markets it operates in, particularly since the Covid-
19 pandemic. The Directors perform various risk-based assessments to ensure the Group is proactive in taking
appropriate actions where necessary to reduce the related risks associated with economic uncertainty.

The Group has planned additional steps to mitigate foreign exchange risk and keep a close controi over business
cost, whilst continuing to ensure we invest in maintaining high standards of customer service.

Brexit

The United Kingdom left the European Union on 31 January 2020. There is now a transition period until the end of
2020 while the UK and EU negotiate additional arrangements.

The Group continues to monitor and assess risks associated with Brexit developments, with a particular interest in
availability of product, access to a guality labour force and the impact of uncertainty on consumer confidence.

Mitigation plans have been put in place where appropriate, and the overall risk assessment of these factors is not
anticipated to have a material impact on the Group performance.

Stakeholder Engagement - Section 172 Companies Act 2006
Directors act in a way that they consider would most likely promote the success of the company for the benefit of
its members as a whole. Nando's considers each of the following in making key decisions:

Act Fairly between all members of the company
Nando's is committed to acting fairly between all members of the company and being transparent in its activities.

The desirability of the company maintaining a reputation for high standards of business conduct and the
likely long term consequences of decisions

Directors are presented at Board meetings with information on all key decisicns and are briefed on potential
impacts and risks for key stakeholders. Directors consider these factors before making a final dectsion which
together they believe is in the best interest of the company. Examples are given in the Strategic Report within
Operational highlights: Brand Strength, International expansion and Operational exceilence.

The interest of the company’s employees (Nandocas)

Our most important resource rermains our people. We have articulated the behaviours that support our values of
pride, passion, courage, integrity and family, and have instilled these into everything we do — our recruitment,
training, development and reward structures. Further examples are given in the Strategic Report Values and
engagement and Principal risks and uncertainties (Employees).

The relationship with suppliers, customers and others
Nando's believes its purpose is to change lives. We work closely with our stakeholders and details are given in
the strategic report within the Values and engagement section.

The impacts on communities and the environment

Nando’s has always placed importance on trying to change lives for the better, for our teams, customers, supply
chains and local communities. Our approach is twofold: we strive to improve our environmental sustainability to
help fight climate change, alongside the welfare of our chickens to build on our long legacy of working towards a
healthier, happier and more envirpnmentally sustainable planet. The details for this are given in the strategic
report within the Values and Engagement section.



Subsequent events including Covid-19 Impact

On 30 January 2020, the World Health Organisation (WHQC) announced Covid-19 as a global health emergency.
The Covid-19 pandemic increased in prevalence throughout the markets where Nando's operates in March and
April with country-wide closures of all eat-in restaurant facilities issued by some Governments, causing our
restaurants to close in those markets.

In the immediate weeks after closure, the Group focused on securing cash availability and minimising cash
outgoings to optimise cash flow. The Group is also grateful for Government action and support and successfully
applied to Government schemes in some of the markets in which it cperates.

Subsequent to those events, the Group has moved to cautiously and carefully re-open restaurants which had
been closed due to lockdowns initially for off-premise sales (Coltect and Delivery) before restarting on-premise
dining with social distancing and other measures to ensure the safety of employees and customers. The Group's
sales performance is ahead of management expectaticns, albeit some way below the performance in the period
prior to Covid-19. Management has reflected the impact of Covid-19 in its forecasts, with this being the main
factor of impairments of Goodwill and other assets. As these relate to extraordinary events, they have been
treated as exceptional items (Note 7).

In September 2020, the Group secured additional funding from its shareholders by raising £100 million in new
equity frorn its immediate parent.

At the date of signing, we have re-opened all but a handful of restaurants for a blend of either Eat-In, Coliect or
Delivery.

Going Concern

On the basis of current financial projections and committed banking facilities, the Directors are satisfied that the
Group has adequate resources to continue in operation for the foreseeable future and consequently the financial

statements have been prepared on a going concern basis. See note 1 for further detail, including
acknowledgement of a material uncertainty to going concern.

By order of the board

L Tait St Mary's House
Director 42 Vicarage Crescent Battersea
- N - London
a2
3 {“{L‘ SW11 3LD
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Nando's Group Holdings Limited

Annual report and statutory consclidated financial statements
23 February 2020

Company registered number 06451677

Directors' Report
The directors present their annual report for the 52 week period ended 23 February 2020.

The Company has chosen, in accordance with S414 C{11} of the Companies Act (2008), to present information
that is otherwise required to be presented in the Director's Report within the Strategic Report.

The consolidated financial statements are prepared under International Financial Reparting Standards as adopted
by the EU (IFRS) as permitted by the Companies Act (2006).

Directors
The directars who held office during the year or have since been appointed were as follows:

R A G T'Hooft

C F Luyckx

A P Lynch (resigned 21 February 2020)
R S Papps {appointed 25 Aprit 2019)

L Pertman {appointed 23 April 2019)

L L Tait (appointed 25 April 2019)

Employees (Nandocas)

The Group's policy is to encourage the employment of disabled people where reasonably practical. Fult and fair
consideration is given to employment applications from disabled persons having regard to their aptitude and
abilities.

The Group encourages the involvement of all Nandocas in the Group's performance using various methods,
including staff surveys, employee forums and incentive schemsas.

The employee forums and staff surveys are also conducted to obtain the views of Nandocas, share financial
information, to ensure all Nandocas are kept informed on all matters of concern to them.

The Group takes all reasonabie steps to ensure that all employment conditions are applied regardless of sex,
race colour, ethnic background, religion or disability. So far as is practicable, arrangements are made to continue
the employment of an employee who becomes disabled and te provide them with training and career
development.

Corporate Governance

The Nando's Board have chosen to report the company’s corporate governance against the Wates Corporate
Governance Principles for Large Private companies.

Purpose and Leadership
Nando's believes its purpose is to change lives. This is set out in the Strategic Report detailing Values and
Engagement.

The Beard and Director Responsibilities

The Board takes a number of steps to ensure that when making decisions there is sufficient regard to key
stakeholders. During the period ended 23 February 2020 the Beard has engaged significantly to understand the
corperate governance needed to promote balanced decision making and the Board will look for further inclusion
of all stakehoider interests in the decision making process in the pericd ended 28 February 2021,

11



The Nando’s beard consists of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and shareholder representatives.

The Board has 3 scheduled core meetings every year with additional meetings scheduled as reguired. The Board
receives regular and timely information on all key aspects of the business. Day to day running of the business is
delegated by the Board to the “Mesa" (our executive leadership team).

The board also maintains a conflicts of interest register to ensure that decisions are made independently.

The Board have established and approved terms of reference for the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee
assists the Board in responsibilies regarding financial reporting and overseeing the performance and
independence of external auditors The Audit Committee also assists the Board in matters of risk management
and internal controls, including monitoring and reviewing the effectiveness of fraud policies, internal control and
risk management. Membership consists of one Executive and one Non-Executive Director.

Opportunity and risk

The key operational risks and mitigations are set out in the Strategic Report above under the section entitied
principle risks and uncertainties. The Audit Committee is required to give regular updates of the group risk
schedule to the Board.

Remuneration

The current remuneration policy is that the CEQO salary is recommended by the Chairman; Mesa (Executive
Directors) and other executive management salary are recommended by the CEQ and approved by the
Chairman. The same principle is then cascaded down throughout management. The Chairman salary is set by
the major shareholders.

Executive Director and Senior Management remuneration is assessed against a balanced scorecard comprising
financial and non-financial targets (including Nandoca staff welfare and brand scores).

Stakeholder Relationships and Engagement

Further information about the key stakehaolder groups and how the Board consider these groups in relation to
decisions made are set out within the strategic report including Values and Engagement and Employees.

Political and charitable contributions
The Group made no political contributions during the year.
The Group made charitable donations of £435.0k {2019: £400.0k). These donations represent direct charity

giving only and therefore capture only a small element of the work and time we dedicate directly to charities both
internationally and in the communities in which we operate.

Dividends

No dividends were paid during the year (2019: nil).

Taxation

Nando's is a responsible corporate citizen and taxpayer. The Group pays all taxes due in every jurisdiction where
we operate. The corporate income tax expense incurred by the Group during the year was £13.2m (2019:

£13.1m). Nando's also contributes further direct and indirect taxes including social security, property taxes, local
taxes and value added taxes.

Financial Management and Financial Instruments

The Group’s Financial Risk management cbjectives and policies, including entering hedging arrangements to
manage the interest rate risk, and the main risks arising from the Group’s financial assets and liabilities are
summarised in hote 29.
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Indemnification of directors

Qualifying third party indemnity provisions (as defined by the Companies Act 20086} are in force for the benefit of
the directors who held office during the year. The Company also provides directars’ and officers' liability insurance
for its directors and other officers.

Future developments

An indication of likely future develocpments in the business due to Covid-19 have been included in the Strategic
Report on page 10.

Subsequent events

Subsequent events have been included within the Strategic Report on page 10.

Disclosure of information to auditor

The directors wha held office at the date of approval of this Directors’ Report confirm that, so far as they are each
aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the Company’s auditor is unaware; and each director has

taken all the steps that he ought to have taken as a director to make himself aware of any relevant audit
information and to establish that the Company’s auditor is aware of that information.

Auditor

Pursuant to Section 487 of the Companies Act 2006, the auditor will be deemed to be reappointed and KPMG
LLP will therefore continue in office.

By order of the board

ML\.{M}.

L Tait 3t Mary's House
Director 42 Vicarage Crescent Battersea
: London
;{“{2‘1" SW113LD
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Nando's Group Holdings Limited

Annual report and statutory consclidated financial statements
23 February 2020

Company registered number 06451677

STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF THE ANNUAL REPORT AND THE
STATUTORY CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the directors fo prepare group and parent company financial statements for each financial year.
tnder that law they have elected to prepare the group financial statements in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union {IFRSs as adopted by the EU) and applicable law and have
elected to prepare the parent company financial statements in accordance with UK accounting standards and
applicable law (UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), including FRS 101 Reduced Disctosure Framework.

Under company law the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the group and parent company and of their profit or loss for that period. n
preparing each of the group and parent company financial statements, the directors are required to:

» select suitable accounting pelicies and then apply them consistently;

= make judgements and estimates that are reasonable, relevant, reliable and prudent;

« for the group financial statements, state whether they have been prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by

» for the parent company financial statements, state whether applicable UK accounting standards have been followed,
subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements;

» assess the group and parent company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern; and

» use the going concern basis of accounting unless they either intend to liquidate the group or the parent company or
to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the
parent company's fransactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the parent
company and enable them to ensure that its financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are
responsible far such internal control as they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and have general responsibility for taking such
steps as are reascnably open to them to safeguard the assets of the group and to prevent and detect fraud and other
irregularities.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF NANDO’S GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Nando's Group Holdings Limited (“the company”) for the 52 week period
ended 23 February 2020 which comprise the Consolidated Income Statement and Cther Comprehensive Income,
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position, Consolidated Statement of Changes In Equity, Consclidated Statement
of Cash Flows, Company Statement of Financial Position, Company Statement of Changes In Equity and related
notes, including the accounting policies in notes 1 to 3.

in our opinion:
» the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the group’s and of the parent company's affairs as at
23 Fehruary 2020 and of the group’s loss for the year then ended;

» the group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards as adopted by the European Union;

» the parent company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with UK accounting standards,
including FRS 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework and

« the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) ("1SAs (UK)") and applicable law.
Our responsibiliies are described below. We have fulfilled our ethical respensibilities under, and are independent of
the group in accordance with, UK ethical requirements inciuding the FRC Ethical Standard. We believe that the audit
evidence we have abtained is a sufficient and appropriate basis for our opinian.

Material uncertainty related to going concern

We draw attention to note 1 to the financial statements which indicates that in both the Base Case and Downside
scenario the Group is reliant upon agreeing waivers of covenants in May 2021 with the bank. If this is not successful
further financing would be required. These events and cenditions, along with the other matters explained in note 1,
constitute a material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt on the group’s and the parent company's ability to
continue as a going concern.

Qur opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Strategic report and directors' report
The directors are responsible for the strategic report and the directors’ report. Qur opinion on the financial statements
does not cover those reports and we do not express an audit opinion thereon.

Cur responsibility is to read the strategic report and the directors' report and, in doing so, consider whether, based on
our financial statements audit work, the information therein is materially misstated or inconsistent with the financial
statements or our audit knowledge. Based solely on that work:

» we have not identified material misstatements in the strategic report and the directors’ report;
« in our opinion the information given in those reports for the financial year is consistent with the financial statements,
- in our opinion those reports have been prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2008,
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF NANDO'S GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
(CONTINUED)

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
Under the Companies Act 2006, we are required 1o report {o you if, in our opiruon

- adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for our audit have not
been received from branches nof visited by us; or

- the parent company financial statements are notin agreement with the accounting recards and returns; ar

» ceriain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not mace; or
* we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

We have nothing to report in these respects.

Directors’ responsibilities

As explained more fully in their statement sel out on page 14, the directors are responsible for: the preparation of the
financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view: such intemal control as they determine
IS necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are frae from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error; assessing the group and parent company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concemn; and using the going concern basis of accaunting unless they either
intend to liquidate the group or the parent company or to cease operations, or have no reaiistic alternative but to do
$0.

Auditor’'s responsibilities

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue our optnion i an auditors report. Reasonabie
assurance is a high level of assurance, but does not guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK}
wilt always detect a malerial missiatement when it exists. Wisstatements can arise from fraud or ervor and are
considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial statements.

A fuller description of our responsibilities is provided om the FRC's website at www frc_org. uk/auditorsresponsibilities.

The purpose of our audit work and to whom we owe our respansibliities

This report is made solely to the company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2008. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s members those
matlers we are required ta ctata to themt in an auditor’s report and for no ather purpose. To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the company and the company’s
members, as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or far the opinions we have formed.

Hugh Green (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behaif of KPMG LLP, Statutory Auditor T

Charfered Accourtants e

KPMG LLP

Chartered Accourtants
Gatewsy House
Toligate

Chandlers Ford

Soutramptr 3 Mo b 22

03 Novernber 2020
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Consolidated Income Statement and Other Comprehensive Income

Nando's Group Holdings Limited
Annual report and statutory consolidated financial statements

23 February 2020

Company registered number 06451677

for the 52 week period ended 23 February 2020 (52 week period ended 24 February 2019)

2020 2020 2020 2019
Note Before Exceptional
exceptional . p Total Total
) items (note 7)
items
£'000s £'000s £'000s £'000s
Revenue 4 1,095,433 - 1,095,433 1,051,106
Cost of sales (865,788) - (865,788) (837,692)
Gross Profit 229,645 - 229,645 213,414
Qther operating income 5 4529 - 4,529 2,647
Administrative expenses 6 (175,692) (62,117) (237,809) (171,742)
Share of loss of equity-accounted investees, 20 (1,1086) - {1,108) {2,385)
net of tax
Qperating profit / (loss) 57,376 (62,117) (4,741) 41,934
Financial income 11 1,696 - 1,696 975
Financial expense 12 (96,376) - {86,376) (68,062)
Net financial expense (94,680) - (94,680) (67,087)
Loss before tax {37,304) (62,117) (99,421) (25,153)
Income tax expense 13 (13,182) - (13,182) (13,125)
(Loss) / profit for the period (50,486) (62,117) (112,603) (38,278)
Non-contrelling interest i9 (132) - (132) (184)
(Loss) / Profit for the period attributable to
Nando’s Group Holdings Limited {50,618} (62,117) {112,735) (38,462)
Other comprehensive income
ftems that may not be reclassified
subsequently to profit / (loss)
Exchange differences on translating foreign (1,761) - (1,761) 1,245
operations
Other comprehensive income for the (1,761) - {1,761) 1,245
period, net of tax
Total comprehensive income for the period (52,379) {62,117} (114,496) _ (37.217)
Total comprehensive income for the period
attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent (52,247) {62,117) (114,364) (37,033)
Non-controlling interest {132) - {132) (184)
(52,379) (62,117) (114,498) (37,217}

The Group has applied IFRS 16 for the first time at 25 February 2019, using the modified retrespective approach. Under
this approach, comparative information is not restated and the cumulative effect of applying tFRS 16 is recognised in

retained earnings at the date of initial application (see note 1.3)

The accompanying notes form part of the financial statements.

17



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
as at 23 February 2020 (24 February 2019)

Non-current assets

Property plant and equipment

Intangible assets

Right of use assets

Investments in equity accounted investees
Deferred tax assets

Trade and cther receivables

Current assets

Inventories

Trade and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Current tax receivable

Total assets

Current liabilities

OCther interest bearing loans and borrowings
Loans due to related parties

Trade and other payables

Tax payable

Provisions

Current [ease liability

Derivative financial instruments

Non-current liabilities

OCther interest bearing loans and borrowings
Loans due to related parties

Other payables

Deferred tax liabilities

Non current lease liability

Provisicns

Total liabilities

Net (liabilities}/assets

Equity

Share Capital

Capital Contribution reserve

Own share reserve

Foreign Currency translation reserve
Retained Earnings

Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent

Non-controlling interest
Total equity

Note

15
16
18
20
21
23

22
23
24

25
25
26

28
18
30

25
25
26
21
18
28

31
31
31

Nando's Group Holdings Limited
Annual report and statutory consolidated financial statements

23 February 2020

Company registered number 06451677

2020 2019
£'000s £'000s
362,123 375,464
651,652 718,689
418,779 -
19,483 22,331
222 1,806
10,741 3,185
1,463,000 1,121,475
6,580 7,520
33,078 33,500
82,693 193,029
536 1,067
122,887 235,116
1,585,887 1,356,591
(13,104) (13,981)
- (125,872)
(162,598) (164,933)
(2,141) (361)
(2,031) (2,004)
(65,784) -
(98) (136)
(245,756) (307,297)
(296,068) (313,230}
(644,318) (596,277)
(8,664) (30,833)
(1,967) (3,705)
(396,498) -
(4,548) (1,988)
(1,352,061) (946,033)
{1,597 817) (1,253,330}
{11,930) 103,261
180,010 180,010
8,450 10,211
(201,852) (88,290)
(13,392) 101,931
1,462 1,330
(11,930) 103,261

The Group has applied IFRS 16 for the first time at 25 February 2019, using the modified retrospective approach.
Under this approach, comparative information is not restated and the cumulative effect of applying IFRS 16 is

recognised in retained earnings at the date of initial application {see note 1.3).

The accompanying notes form part of the financial statements.



Nando's Group Holdings Limited

Annual report and statutory consoclidated financial statements
23 February 2020

Company registered number 064518677

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
for the 52 week period ended 23 February 2020 (52 week period ending 24 February 2019)

2029 2019
£'000s £000s
Cash flows from operating activities
(Loss} / Profit for the pericd (from continuing operations) (112,603) (38,278)
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation 108,227 100,115
Depreciation of right of use asset 52,076 -
Impairment loss on trade receivables 210 51
Impairment loss on non current assets {net of reversals of impairment) 61,548 721
Lossi{gain) on disposal of non current assets 9,467 3,656
Share of equity accounted investees 1,106 2,385
Share Based payment expense (48) 5,400
Financial income (1,696} (975)
Financial expense 96, 376 68,062
Taxation 13,182 13,125
227,843 154,262
Decrease/(increase) in trade & other receivables 2,495 706
Decrease/(increase) in inventories 940 (1,681
Increase/(decrease) in trade & other payables (5,875) 12,695
increase/(decrease) in provisions (2,003) 1,443
Cash generated from operations 223,400 167,425
Tax paid (8,922) (10,787
Net cash flows from operating activities 214,478 156,638
Cash flows from investing activities
Proceeds from disposal of Property plant and equipment - 17
Acquisition of business combinations (net of cash acquired) (669) (5086)
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment (95,606) (82,192)
Acquisition of equity accounted investments (168) (4,122)
Acquisition of intangible assets (932) (1,080)
Interest received 797 247
Dividends received 10 320
Net cash flows from investing activities (96,568) {87,316}
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from long term baorrowings - 5,466
Repayment of long term borrowings (146,645) (62,166)
Purchase of non controlling interest - -
Proceeds from issue of share capital - 130,000
Lease payments (principal portion) (37,324) -
Interest paid (43,948) (11,346)
Net cash flows from financing activities (227.917) 61,954
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Nando's Group Holdings Limited
Annual report and statutory consolidated financial statements

23 February 2020

Company registered number 08451677

for the 52 week period ended 23 February 2020 (52 week period ending 24 February 2019)

Net cash flows from operating activities
Net cash flows from investing activities
Net cash flows from financing activities

Net increase/{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period

Effects of foreign exchange rate changes on the balance of cash held in
foreign currencies

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period

Cash and cash equivalents per balance sheet
Bank overdrafts
Cash and cash equivaients at end of period per cash flow

Note

24

24

Group Group
2020 2019
£'000s E£'000s
214,478 156,638
(96,568) (87,318)
(227,917} 61,954
(110,007) 131,276
193,029 62,437
(329) (684)
82,693 193,028
82,693 193,029
82,693 193,028

The Group has applied [FRS 16 for the first time at 25 February 2019, using the modified retrospective approach.
Under this approach, comparative information is not restated and the cumulative effect of applying IFRS 16 is
recognised in retained earnings at the date of initial application (see note 1.3)

The accompanying notes form part of the financial statements.
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Nando's Group Hoidings Limited
Annual report and statutory consolidated financial statements
23 February 2020

Notes to the financial statements

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are set out
below. These policies have been applied consistently for all the periods presented, unless otherwise stated.

1 Basis of preparation

Nando's Group Holdings Limited (the "“Company”) is a private company, limited by shares, incorporated, registered
and domiciled in the England. The registered number is 06451677 and the registered address is St Mary's House, 42
Vicarage Crescent, Battersea, London, SW11 3LD.

The Nando's Group Holdings Limited Group includes the company and entities controlled by it and its subsidiaries and
equity account the Group's interest in associates and joint ventures.{"the Group”). The Group financial statements
consolidate those of the Company and its subsidiaries. The directors have prepared these financial statements on a
going concern basis.

The Group consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards as adopted by the EU (IFRS). The Company has elected to prepare its parent company financial
statements in accordance with FRS 101, these are presented on pages 73 to 88.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and reported amounts in the financial statements.
The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions or estimates are
significant to the financial statements, are disclosed in note 3.

The consoclidated financial statements are presented in Pound Sterling, which is the Group's presentation currency.
The functional currency of the Company is Pounds Sterling.

Going concem

As at 23 February 2020 the consolidated Group had net liabilities of £11.9m, net current liabiliies of £122.9m, an
operating loss of £4.7m and a loss for the period then ended of £112.8m. Operating cash inflows for the year were
£214.5m. The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis which the directors consider to be
appropriate.

Borrowings at 23 February 2020 stocd at £953.5m pre-IFRS 16 and at £1,415.8m post IFRS 16 with cash balances of
£82.7m, creating a net debt position of £870.8m pre-IFRS 16 and £1,333.1m post IFRS 16 and undrawn facilities of
£110m.

Coronavirus (Covid-19) pandemic
As at the date of approving these financial statements, the impact of Covid-19 on the Company's trading is continually
being assessed.

As of the date of approval of these financial statements, all but a handful of the Group's company cwned and operated
restaurants have re-opened and are trading, either as ‘off premise' {through a combination of Collect and Delivery
channels) or as both 'off premise’ and 'on premise’, including the Eat-in channel.

The ‘Base Case' assumption includes reforecast budgets by markets after incorporating for the impacts of Covid-19 on
the financial period ending 28 February 2021's ("FY21") performance. Each market has included the Government
enforced lockdown pericds where restaurants were closed or trading with limited capacity and markets have estimated
a slow retum back to business as usual, within their reforecast budgets. Furthermore, the financial period ending 27
February 2022 {"FY22") has been estimated to have a sub-par perfermance with the Group not returning to its usual
trading results until after FY22.

The UK market's banking facility has covenant tests based on a quarterly comparison between EBITDA and net debt
levels. Steps have been taken to preserve liquidity assuming the Base Case but if the EBITDA was further reduced in
FY21, covenants would not be met. Formal waivers of future covenant tests up to February 2021 have been received
from the bank and would need to be obtained for the quarter thereafter. Given the historic cash generation of the
business, its brand strength and gearing levels, the Directors are confident about their ability to agree waivers but this
cannct be guaranteed and the Group would not have the capacity to repay this debt out of available funds in the short
term.
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Nando's Group Holdings Limited
Annual report and statutory censolidated financial statements
23 February 2020

1 Basis of preparation (continued)

Going concemn (continued)

Base Case

During the current period, the Group continues to take appropriate measures to preserve liquidity. The following
mitigating actions have been built into the Base Case scenario:

- In September 2020, the group has received shareholder funding of £100m.

- The Group has drawn down most of the £125m RCF & Overdraft available to the UK market under their financing
facilities.

- A significant element of the Group's cost base relates to wages and salaries. The Group has applied to various
Government schemes across its UK and Overseas markets and within the Base Case includes these Government
contributions towards the wages and salaries.

- The Group has rephased significant elements of its planned capital expenditure programme. This includes a deferral
of the majority of new restaurant openings (where not already largely complete pre-fockdown) and major refurbishment
projects. The Group have also included cne-off costs necessary to comply with Government guidelines on social
distancing and in particular ensuring the safety of employees and customers as Eat-In services are increasingly
permitted around the world.

- The Group continue to have an active dialogue with our landlords to seek mutually acceptable adoption of rent-free
and rent-deferral periods.

- The Group have closed 21 restaurants in Canada, to reduce our cost base, where these restaurants were not
generating positive cashflows.

- All ather business expenditure has been reduced to elements necessary to meet legal requirement or those elements
considered critical to enable the business to emerge from the lockdown period in as strong a pesition as possible.

Using this Base Case, the Directors have prepared cash flow forecasts for the rest of the current financtal period (4
months) and the next financial period (12 months) which indicate that, if the required covenant waivers or relaxations
are offered from the external banks which the UK market borrow from, the Group would be able to cperate within the
existing facilities that are available to it and meet its liabilities as they fall due for that period.

Downside scenario

It is currently very difficult to assess how the Covid-19 situation will evolve. The Directors believe that the Base Case
scenario above is reasonable, assuming a continuation of off-premise sales in line with actual lockdown performance
and a gentle and limited overlay of a suppressed volume of Eat-in sales through the next 12 months. However, it is
passible that the relaxation of lockdown restrictions may be reversed temporarily at a local level, and/or that the
recovery profile is slower than in the Base Case. The Directors have therefore prepared a more severe 'Downside
Case' that medels:

- In the UK, a complete absence of any Eat-in performance until March 2021, but with off-premise channels continuing
to operate at current sales levels,

- Overseas, a further 20% reducticn to gross margin, and a 10% reduction to other operating costs, with ne change to
rent for both the current financial period and the next financial period. Capital expenditure also drops by 20% in the
current financial period and 40% in the next financtal peried in this scenario.

- For the Grocery division, the Group have modelted a 10% drop in EBITDA and for the central support functions the
Group have modelled a 10% increase in costs.

Consistent with the Base Case, in the Downside Case the Group will be able to operate within the existing facilities
that are available. The same covenant waivers described in the Base Case would be required in the Downside Case.
All the pfans abave include the capacity constraints introduced to achieve social distancing within restaurants in line
with local government guidelines.
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1 Basis of preparation (continued)

Going concem (continued)
Access to wider Group facilities

The Base Case and Downside Scenario noted above depend on the UK market continuing to be funded with its
external banking facility. Were the Group to require access to further liquidity, the UK market would expect to pursue
facilities under the UK Government's CCFF (Covid-19 Company Funding Facility) should it be available at the time.
Alternative sources of funding could also be sought, including the extension of further lending facilities. Given the
Group's history of cash generation, the Group would expect to be able to raise such funds as were necessary,
however there is no guarantee that such funds will be available.

The Group is not required to repay any of its current related party Deep Discounted Bonds (DDBs} until financial
period ending 2023.

The circumstances of the UK market needing covenant watvers for the financial peried ending 2022, in both the Base
Case and the Downside Case represent a material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern and therefore to continue realising its assets and discharging its liabitities in the normal
course of business. The financial statements do not include any adjustments that would result from the basis of
preparation being inappropriate.

1.1 Standards issued and applied for the first time in 2020
The following new and revised Standards and Interpretations have been adopted in the current period. Unless
otherwise disclosed, their adoption has had no material impact on the amounts reported in these financial statements.
» IFRS 16 in respect of Leases is effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018. IFRS 16
results in almost all leases being recognised in the statement of financial position, as the distinction between
finance and aperating leases is removed. Under this standard, an asset (the right to use the leased item} and a
financial liability to pay rentals are recognised. The only exceptions are short-term leases and low value leases.
Refer to Note 1.3 for further details.
= Amendments to IFRS 9 Financial Instruments: the amendments relate to Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation.
» Annual improvements to IFRS Standards 2015 - 2017.
» IFRIC 23 in respect of Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments: IFRIC 23 provides guidance in determining
how tax treatment adopted in a tax return should be reflected in the financial statements.
= Amendments to IAS 19: Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settiement.
* Amendments to 1AS 28: Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures.

1.2 Standards and interpretations issued and not yet effective

Certain new accounting standards and interpretations have been published that are not mandatory for 31 December
2019 reporting periods and have not been early adopted by the group. These standards are not expected to have a
material impact on the entity in the current or future reporting pericds and on foreseeable future transactions.

1.3 Impact of new standards

IFRS 16 Leases

IFRS 16 ‘Leases’ replaces IAS 17 'Leases'. The Standard is effective in the company's statutory financial
statements for the period ending 23 February 2020. The Group adopted the standard without restating prior
periods. Opening retained earnings has been adjusted for any difference in carrying value following adoption of
IFRS 16. Changes in accounting policies resulting from the adopticn of IFRS 16 have been applied
retrospectively. Accordingly, the information presented for the prior period does not reflect the requirements of
IFRS 16 and therefore is not comparable to the information presented for the current period under IFRS 16.
The reclassifications and the adjustments arising from the new leasing rules are therefore recognised in the
opening balance sheet on 25 February 2019.
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1.3 Impact of new standards (continued]

Cn adoption of IFRS 16, the group recognised lease liabilities in relation to leases which had previously been
classified as ‘operating leases’ under the principles of IAS 17 Leases. These liabiliies were measured at the present
value of the remaining lease payments, discounted using the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate as of 25 February
2019. The weighted average lessee’s incremental borrowing rate applied to the lease liabilities of the Group on 25
February 2019 was 7.25%.

For leases previously classified as finance leases the entity recognised the carrying amount of the lease asset and
lease liability immediately before transition as the carrying amount of the right of use asset and the lease liability at the
date of initial application. The measurement principles of IFRS 16 are only applied after that date. The
remeasurements to the lease liabilities were recognised as adjustments to the related right-of-use assets immediately
after the date of initial application.

(i) Practical expedients applied

In applying IFRS 16 for the first time, the group has used the following practical expedients permitted by the
standard:

- applying a single discount rate to a portfolio of ieases with reasonably similar characteristics;

- relying on previous assessments on whether leases are onerous as an alternative to performing an
impairment review,

- accounting for operating leases with a remaining lease term of less than 12 months as at 25 February 2019
as short-term leases;

- excluding initial direct costs for the measurement of the right-of-use asset at the date of initial

application; and

- using hindsight in determining the lease term where the contract contains options to extend or

terminate the lease.

The greup has also elected not to reassess whether a contract is, or contains a lease at the date of initial

application. Instead, for contracts entered into before the transition date the group relied on its assessment
made applying IAS 17 and IFRIC 4.

(i) Measurement of lease liabiiities

£'000s
Operating lease commitments disclosed as at 24 February 2018 (628,374,
Discounted using the lessee's incremental borrowing rate of at the date of 163,259
initial application
Add: finance lease liabllities recognised as at 24 February 2019 -
Add: liabilities where the Group are head lessee and hold a sub lease (12,160)
(Less): short-term leases not recognised as a liability 232

(Less): low-value leases not recognised as a liability -
Addi(less): contracts reassessed as lease contracts -
Add/(less): adjustments as a result of a different treatment of extension and {8,707)
termination cptions

Add/(less): adjustments relating to changes in the index ar rate affecting -
variable payments

Lease liability recognised as at 25 February 2019 (485,750)

(ifi) Measurement of ight-of-uyse assets
Right-of use assets were measured at the amount equal to the lease liability, adjusted by the amount of any

prepaid or accrued lease payments or oneraous lease provisions relating to that lease recognised in the balance
sheet as at 24 February 2019.
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1.3 impact of new standards (continued)
(iv) Adjustments recognised in the balance sheet on 25 February 2019

The change in accounting policy affected the following items in the balance sheet on 25 February 2019:
» right-of-use assets — increase by £452m
« loan receivable (sub-lease) - increase by £12m
« other liabilities - decrease by £21m
+ lease liabilities — increase by £485m

There is no impact on retained earnings as at 25 February 2018
{v) Lessor accounting

The group did not need to make any adjustments to the accounting for assets held as lessor under
operating leases as a result of the adoption of IFRS 16.

2 Accournting Policies

2.1 Measurement convention
The financial statements are prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain non-current assets and financial
instruments that are measured at revalued amounts or fair values, as explained in the accounting policies below.

2.2 Basis of consolidation
The consolidated accounts of Nando's Group Holdings Limited includes the company and entities controlled by it and
its subsidiaries.

Control is achieved when the investor
= has power over the investee,
* is exposed or has rights to variable returns from its involvement with the investee; and
« has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

If facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three elements of control listed above,
the investor shall reassess whether it controls the investee.

An investar can have power over an investee even if it holds less than a majarity of the voting rights of an investee. All
facts and circumstances are considered in assessing whether or not voting rights in an investee are sufficient to give it
power, for example, through:

* contractual arrangements with other vote holders;

» rights from other contractual arrangements that indicate that the company has the current ability to direct the
relevant activities of the investee;

- the size of the company's holding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of holdings of other vote
holders; or

» potential voting rights held by the company that are substantive.

The Group enters into franchise arrangements with third parties which confer the right to operate the Nando's brand
restaurant in designated focations. In exchange, the Group receives a variable royalty as described in note 2.15. The
facts and circumstances of each franchise agreement are considered when determining whether control is achieved.
Whilst the franchise arrangements provide for the group to have certain protective rights over the franchisees use of
the Nando's brand, these rights do not constitute power and therefore control over the franchisees.

investment in subsidiaries

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins from the date the investor gains control of an investee and ceases when the
investor loses control of an investee. The purchase, or acquisition, methed of accounting is used to account for the
acquisition of subsidiaries by the Group. The cost of the acquisition is measured as the fair value of assets transferred,
equity instruments issued and liabilities incurred at the date of exchange. Intra-group transactions, balances and
unrealised gains and losses on transactions between group companies are eliminated.
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2.2 Basis of consolidation (continued}

Investment in subsidiaries (continued)

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented in the consolidated statement of financial position separately
fram the equity attributable to equity owners of the parent company. Non-controlling shareholders’ interest may initially
be measured either at fair value or at the non-controlling shareholders’ proportionate share of the fair value of the
acquiree’'s identifiable net assets. The choice of measurement basis is made on each acquisition individually.
Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-controlling interests is the amount of those interests at initial
recognition plus the non-controlling interests’ share of subseguent changes in equity. Total comprehensive income is
attributed to non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Acquisitions or disposals of non-controlling interests which do not affect the parent company’s control of the subsidiary
are accounted for as transactions with equity holders. Any difference between the fair value of the amount paid or
received and the change in non-controlling interests is recognised directly in equity.

When the Group ceases to have control of a subsidiary, any retained interest in the entity is re-measured to its fair
value at the date when control is [ost with the adjustment being recognised in profit or loss as part of the gain or loss
on disposal of the controlling interest. All amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to
that subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities of the
subsidiary (this may mean that these amounts are reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to another category of
equity as specified by applicable IFRS).

Investment in Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor an interest
in a joint venture. Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the
investee but is not control or joint control over those pelicies. The investment in an associate is initially recognised at
cost and adjusted for the Group's share of in the net assets of the investee after the date of acquisition, and for any
impairment in value (equity method), except when the investment is classified as held-for-sale in accordance with
IFRS 5 Non-current assets held-for-sale and discontinued operations. The Group recognises losses to the extent there
is a legal or constructive obligation in relation to those losses.

Joint venture

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the
net assets of the arrangement. In classifying whether an investee is jointly controlled, management considers the
rights and cbligations of the parties to the arrangement. This includes the structure and form of the arrangement, the
terms agreed by the parties in the contractual arrangement and other facts and circumstances. The investment in a
joint venture is initially recognised at cost and adjusted for the Group’s share of in the net assets of the investee after
the date of acquisition, and for any impairment in value (equity method), except when the investment is classified as
held-for-sale in accordance with IFRS 5 Non-current assets held-for-sale and discontinued operations. The Group
recognises losses to the extent there is a legal or constructive obligation in relation to those losses. When the Group
loses joint contral, it proportionately reclassifies the related items which were previously accumulated in equity through
other comprehensive income to profit or loss as a reclassification adjustment. If an investment remains, it is measured
to fair value, with the fair value adjustment being recognised in profit or loss as part of the gain or loss on disposal.
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23 Foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded in the respective functional currencies of the entiies within the Group.
Monetary items denominated in foreign cumencies are retranslated at the exchange rates applying at the reporting
date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined. Nen-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are not retransiated.

Exchange differences are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise, except for:

« exchange differences on foreign currency borrowings which are regarded as adjustments to interest costs,
where those interest costs gualify for capitalisation to assets under construction;,

» exchange differences on loans to or from a foreign operation for which setiement is neither planned nor likely
to oceur and therefare forms part of the net investment in the foreign operation, which are recognised initially in
other comprehensive income and reclassified from equity to profit or loss on disposal or partial disposal of the
net investment.

Foreign operations

The assets and liabilities of the Group's foreign operations are transiated to Pounds Sterling using exchange rates at
period end. Income and expense items are translated at the average exchange rates for the period, unless exchange
rates fluctuated significantly during that period, in which case the exchange rate on transaction date is used. Gooadwill
acquired in business combinations of foreign operations are treated as assets of that operation and transiated at the
closing rate.

Exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive income and ascumulated in a separate category of

On the disposal of a foreign operation, the accumulated exchange differences of that operation, which is attributabie to
the Group are recognised in profit or loss.

2.4 Financial instruments

The Group classifies financial instruments, or their component parts, on initial recognition as a financial asset, a
financial liability or an equity instrument in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangement. Financial
instruments are recagnised when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

2.41 Financial assets
Financial assets comprise cash and cash equivalents and trade and other receivables.

Trade receivables are initially recognised when they are originated and are initially measured at fair value where there
is a significant financing component. Trade receivables without a significant financing component is initiatly measured
at the transaction price.

Trade receivables are subsequently measured at amortised cost as they meets both of the following conditions:

- they are held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows,; and

- their contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses (ECLs) on trade receivables using the simplified
expected credit loss model which is measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECL.

Financial assets are not reclassified subseguent to their initial recognition unless the Group changes its business
model for managing financial assets in which case all affected financial assets are reclassified on the first day of the
first reporting period following the change in the business model.

Foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition
is recognised in profit or loss.
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2.4 Financial instruments (continued)

2.41 Financial assets (continued)

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition and
when estimating ECL, the Group considers reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and available
without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the
Group's histerical experience and informed credit assessment and including forward-looking infermation.

The company assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly if it is more than 30 days
past due. The company considers a financial asset to be in default when the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit
obligations to the company in full, without recourse by the company to actions such as realising security (if any is held)
or the financial asset is more than 90 days past due.

ECLs are a prebability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the present value of all cash
shortfalls (i.2. the difference between the cash flows due to the entity in accordance with the contract and the cash
flows that the company expects to receive). ECLs are discounted at the effective interest rate of the financial asset. At
each reporting date, the company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost are credit-impaired. A
financial asset is 'credit-impaired’ when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future
cash flows of the financial asset have occurred. The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either
partially or in full) to the extent that there is no realistic prospect of recovery.

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances and call deposits. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand
and form an integral part of the Company’s cash management are included as a component of cash and cash
equivalents for the purpose onily of the cash flow statement.

2.4  Financial instruments (continued)

2.4.2 Financial liabilities (other than derivative financial instruments)
Financial liabilities comprise loans and borrowings and trade and other payables. Financial liabilities are initially
recognised when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs that are directly attributable to its
acquisition or issue. Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and lesses are recaognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on
derecognition is alsc recognised in profit or loss.

2.4.3 Derivative financial instruments

The Group holds derivative financial instruments to hedge its market and interest rates risk exposures and mitigate
risks to its cash flow. Derivative financial instruments are recognised at fair value. The gain or loss on remeasurement
to fair value is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

2.4.4 Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Group are recorded at the value of proceeds received, net of costs directy
attributable to the issue of the instruments.
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25 Business combinations

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition methed. The consideration for acquisition is measured
at the fair values of assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed, and equity instruments issued by the Group in order
to obtain control of the acquiree (at the date of exchange). Costs incurred in connection with the acquisition are
recognised in profit or loss as incurred. Where a business combination is achieved in stages, previously held interests
in the acquiree are re-measured to fair value at the acquisition date (date the Group obtains control} and the resulting
gain or loss, is recognised in profit or loss. Adjustments are made to fair values to bring the accounting policies of
acquired businesses into alignment with those of the Group. The costs of integrating and reorganising acquired
businesses are charged to the post acquisition profit or loss.

If the initial accounting is incomplete at the reporting date, provisional amounts are recorded. These amounts are
subsequently adjusted during the measurement period, or additional assets or liabilities are recognised when new
information about its existence is obtained during this period.

Non-measurement period adjustments to contingent consideration(s) classified as equity are not remeasured. Non-
measurement period adjustments to other contingent cansiderations are remeasured at fair value with changes in fair
value recognised in profit or loss.

Where setflernent of any part of cash caonsideration is deferred, the amounts payable in the future are discounted to
their present value as at the date of exchange. The discount rate used is the group’s incremental borrowing rate, being
the rate at which a similar borrowing ceould be obtained from an independent financier under comparable terms and
conditions.

The Group measures the identifiable assets acquired and the liabiliies assumed at their acquisition date fair values,
the fair value is determined by reference to the asset or liability being exchanged in an orderly fransaction between
market participants to sell the asset or transfer the liability at the measurement date under current market conditions.
The value of the reacquired rights are separately valued on the basis of the remaining contractual term of the
franchisee agreement using the income appreach.

Nen financial assets are measured at fair value at acquisition date with reference to the highest and best use of the
asset, specifically if the highest and best use of the asset is to use the asset in combination with other assets. The fair
value of Property, plant and equipment is determined using the depreciated replacement cost approach.

The Group measures goodwill at the acquisition date as the:
« fair value of the consideration transferred; plus
« recognised amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree; plus
« fair value of the existing equity interest in the acquiree; less
* net recognised amount of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed.

When the excess is negative, a bargain purchase gain is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

2.6 Property, plant and equipment
All praperty, plant and equipment assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses.

Under IAS 17, the Group had leases which were classified as finance leases as the Group had assumed substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the leased asset. Where land and buildings were held under leases the
accounting treatment of the land was considered separately from that of the buildings. Prior to the current period,
these leased assets acquired by way of finance lease were stated at an amount equal to the lower of their fair value
and the present value of the minimum lease payments at inception of the lease, less accumulated depreciation and
tess accumulated impairment losses. The accounting treatment for these leases subsequent to transition to IFRS 16,
and for leases entered into after 25 February 2019, are described below in accounting policy 2.17.
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2.6 Property, plant and equipment {continued)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is provided to write off the cost, less residual value, on a straight line
basis over the estimated useful lives as follows:

* Buildings 40 years
» Plant and equipment 3-10 years
= Fixtures and fittings 3-10 years
+ Motor vehicles 4-5 years
» Capitalised pre-opening costs 4 years
* Leased plant and equipment 7 years or the life of the lease if shorter
* Short lgasehold property Life of the lease

« { and is not depreciated

Pre-opening costs which are capitalised include project management costs, stamp duty and legal costs directly
associated with bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the
manner intended by management. These costs comprise primarily a proportion of payroli costs for named individuals
involved in these Project Management teams and are directly attributable to these restaurant fit cuts. All other pre-
opening costs are expensed directly to the Profit and Loss Account as incurred.

Residual values, remaining useful lives and depreciation methods are reviewed annually and adjusted if appropriate.
Gains or losses on disposal are included in profit or loss.

27 Intangible assets

Amortisation

Amortisation is charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the intangible asset
unless such lives are indefinite. These charges are included in administrative expenses. Intangible assets with an

indefinite useful life are tested for impairment annually. Other intangible assets are amortised from the date they are
available for use. The useful lives are as follows:

+ Reacquired franchise rights over the term of the franchise agreement 1-23 years
« IT Development and software 3 years
« Intellectual Property 20 years

Amortisation periods and methods are reviewed annually and adjusted if apprapriate.

intangible assets acquired separately
Intangible assets acquired separately are shown at historical cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment
{osses.

Intangible assets generated internalily
Expenditure on research activities is recognised in the income statement as an expense as incurred.

Expenditure on development activities is capitalised if the product or process is technically and commercially feasible
and the Group intends tc and has the technical ability and sufficient resources to complete development, future
economic benefits are probable and if the Group can measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the intangible
asset during its development. Development activities involve a plan or design for the production of new or substantially
improved products or processes. The expenditure capitalised includes the cost of materials, direct labour and an
appropriate proportion of overheads and capitalised borrowing costs. Other development expenditure is recognised in
the income statement as an expense as incurred. Capitalised development expenditure is stated at cost less
accurmulated amortisation and less accumulated impairment losses.

Intangible assets recognised in a business combination
Intangible assets acquired in a business combination and recognised separately from gooedwill are initially recognised
at their fair value at the acquisition date.

Other intangible assets

Expenditure on internally generated goodwill and brands is recognised in the income statement as an expense as
incurred. Other intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are stated at cost less accumutated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses.
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2.8 Goodwill

Goodwill on acquisitions comprises the excess of the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration transferred, the
fair value of any previously held interests, and the recognised value of the non-controtling interest in the acquiree over
the net of the acquisition date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed.

Goodwill is carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units before it
is tested for impairment annually. Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity include the carrying amount of goodwill
relating to the entity sold. In respect of equity accounted investees, the carrying amount of goodwill is included in the
carrying amount of the investment in the investee.

2.9 inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value on a weighted average basis. Cost comprises the
purchase cost of goods, and, where applicable to the Grocery division of the Group, it also includes direct labour and
overheads related to manufacture. In the case of manufactured inventeries and work in progress, cost includes an
appropriate share of overheads based on normal operating capacity.

2.10 Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses annually whether there is any indication that any of its assets have been impaired, cther than
inventories and deferred tax assets. If such indication exists, the assef's recoverable amount is estimated and
compared to its carrying value. Where it is impossible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the
Group estimates the recoverable amount of the smallest cash generating unit to which the asset is allocated.

If the recoverable amount of an asset {or cash generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, an
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which
case the impairment loss is recognised as revaluation decrease.

For goodwill, intangible assets that have an indefinite lifs, and intangible assets not yet available for use, the
recoverable amount is estimated annually and at the end of each reporting period if there is an indication of
impairment.

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less
costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. For the purpose of impairment testing, assets that cannot be tested individually are grouped together inte the
smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash
inflows of other assets or groups of assets (the “cash-generating unit’). The goodwill acquired in a business
combination, for the purpose of impairment testing, is allocated te cash-generating units, or (*CGU"}). Subject to an
operating segment ceiling test, for the purposes of goodwill impairment testing, CGUs to which goodwill has been
allocated are aggregated so that the level at which impairment is tested reflects the lowest level at which goodwill is
monitored for internal reporting purposes. Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated to groups of CGUs
that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.

Impairment Josses recognised in respect of CGUs are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any geodwill
allocated to the units, and then to reduce the carrying amounts of the other assets in the unit (group of units} on a pro
rata basis.

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed. In respect of other assets, impairment losses recognised in
prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any indications that the loss has decreased or no longer exists.
An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been
recognised.
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2.11 Retirement benefits

The Group operates defined confribution pension schemes. The Group pays fixed contributions into a separate entity
from the Group, in an independently administered fund. These contributions are expensed in the period in which the
employees rendered the services entitling them to the benefits.

2.12 Share-based payments

Share-based payment arrangements in which the Group receives goods or services as consideration for its own equity
instruments are accounted for as equity-settled share-based payment transactions, regardiess of how the equity
instruments are obtained by the Group. Share-based payment transactions in which the Group receives goods or
services by incurring a liability to transfer cash or other assets that is based on the price of the Group’s equity
instuments are accounted for as cash-settled share-based payments. All current arrangements are equity-settled
arrangements, with one of the schemes being converted into cash-settled during the peried, before being finalised.

For the equity-settied schemes, the fair value of a share plan is recognised as an expense over the expected vesting
period with a correspending entry to retained earnings. The fair vaiue of the share plans is determined at the date of
grant. Non-market based vesting cenditions (i.e. Group profitability targets) are taken into account in estimating the
number of awards likely to vest, which is reviewed at each accounting date up to the vesting date, at which point the
estimate is adjusted to reflect the actual awards issued. No adjustment for past service is made during the vesting
date even if the options are forfeited, or are not exercised. For share-based payment awards with non-vesting
conditions, the grant date fair value of the share-based payment is measured to reflect such conditions and there is no
true-up for differences between expected and actual outcomes. The fair value of the share plan is measured using the
Monte Carlo method.

For the cash-settled schemes, the fair value of the amount payable to employees was recognised as an expense, with
a corresponding increase in liabilities, over the remaining period in which the employees became unconditionally
entitted to payment. The liability is remeasured at the balance sheet date and at settlement date. Any changes in the
fair value of the liability are recognised as personnel expense in profit or loss.

213 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obiigation (legal or constructive) as a resuit of a past event, it
is probable that the Group will be required to settle the obligation, and a retiable estimate can be made of the amount
of the obligation.

Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects risks specific to
the liability.

214 Equity
Financial instruments issued by the Group are treated as equity only to the extent that they meet the following two
conditions:

a. they include no contractuat obligations upon the group to deliver cash or other financial assets or to exchange
financial assets or financial liabilities with another party under conditions that are potentially unfavourable to the group;
and

b. where the instrument will or may be settled in the company's own equity instruments, it is either a non-derivative
that includes no cbligation to deliver a variable number of the group's own equity instruments or is a derivative that will
be settled by the company’s exchanging a fixed amount of cash or cther financial assets for a fixed number of its own
equity instruments.

To the extent that this definition is not met, the proceeds of issue are classified as a financial liability. Where the
instrument so classified takes the legal form of the company's own shares, the amounts presented in these financial
statements for called up share capital exclude amounts in relation to those shares.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of
tax, from the proceeds.

Where any group company purchases the company’s equity instruments, for example as a resuit of share buy-back,
the consideration paid, including any directly incremental costs (net of taxes) is deducted from equity attributable to the
owners of the Group as treasury shares until such time that the shares are cancelled or reissued.
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215 Revenue
Revenue arises from the Group's principal activities: the sale of goods in the operation of fast casual dining
restaurants, the sale of grocery products, royalty income and franchise fees.

Revenue is recognised when the performance obligations are satisfied and control has transferred to the customer.
Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, net of returns, discounts and sales taxes (such as VAT and
similar}.

Sale of goods

The performance cbligations are the goods sold in the restaurant, and in some markets we run a loyalty programme,
which is deemed to be a materal right to the customer. Revenues allocated to the goods sold in the restaurant are
recegnised at a point in time when the customer obtains the goods, and revenues allocated to the loyalty programme
are recognised at a point in time when the customer uses the loyalty points or if the paints expire.

The Group operates customer loyalty schemes which are deemed to be material rights to the customer. The Group
recognises the deferred income balances arising through the operaticn of such loyalty schemes by deferring a
proportion of restaurant revenue based on the proportionate stand alone selling prices of the material right, which is
calcutated using the value of the discount and the expected customer redemption records, and the goods sold in the
restaurant. Revenue is deferred and is recognised as revenue when the Group has fulfilled its obligations to supply the
discounted or free of charge products under the terms of the programme or when it is no longer possible that the
points under the programme can be redeemed as the points expire.

Royalty income and Franchise fees
The performance obligation is the licence to trade in the market Revenues are allocated to the licence and this is
recognised over the period of the agreement.

Initial franchise fees billed to the customer are not deemed to be a distinct performance obligation and as a result, the
amounts are allocated to the licence performance obligation and as a result, it is recognised as deferred income and is
recognised as revenue overtime of the agreement.

Royaity income and marketing income is received based on a percentage of total restaurant sales in accordance with
the substance of the relevant MFA for that market. Royalty income is recognised on an accruals basis in line with
restaurant sales. This is in line with the exemption in IFRS 15 which allows sales based royalties to be booked as and
when the subsequent sale occurs.

Grocery sales
The performance obligation is the sale of goods to distributors. Revenue is recognised at a point in time when control
passes aver to the distributor.

Recognition of revenue arising from the sale of grocery products depends on the individual terms of the sales
agreement, the transfer usually occurs when the goods are delivered to the customer; however, for some international
shipments the transfer occurs on loading the goods onte the relevant carrier at the port.

216 Cost of sales

Cost of sales includes those costs directly attributable to the provision of goods and services to customers. Receipts
from suppliers in respect of volume-based rebates and other incentives are recorded within cost of sales as the group
becomes entitled to receive the rebate. Where there is a short term timing difference between the rebate becoming
contractually due and the receipt from the supplier, the receivable is included within other receivables.
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217 Leases

The Group has applied IFRS 16 using the madified retrospective approach and therefore the comparative informaticn
has not been restated and continues to be reported under IAS 17 and IFRIC 4. The details of accounting policies
under IAS 17 and IFRIC 4 are disclosed separately if they are different from those under IFRS 16 and the impact of
changes is disclosed in Note 1.3.

2.17.1 Leases - as lessor (policy applicable until 24 February 2019)

Operating feases
Rental and franchise income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease. Any balloon payments and rent free pericds are taken into account when determining the straight-line charge.

2.17.2 Leases - as lessor (policy applicable from 25 February 2019)

At inception or on modification of a contract that contains a lease component and one or more additional lease or non-
lease components, the Group alflocates the consideration in the contract applying IFRS 15

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines at lease inception whether each lease is a finance |lease or an
operating lease.

To classify each lease, the Group makes an overall assessment of whether the lease transfers substantially ali of the
risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the underlying asset. If this is the case, then the lease is a finance lease;
if not, then it is an operating lease. As part of this assessment, the Group considers certain indicators such as whether
the lease is for the major part of the economic life of the asset.

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, it accounts for its interests in the head lease and the sub-iease separately.
It assesses the lease classification of a sub-lease with reference to the right-of-use asset arising from the head lease,
not with reference to the underlying asset.

The Group applies the derecognition and impairment requirements in IFRS 9 to the net investment in the lease (see
the financial instruments note). The Group further regularly reviews estimated unguaranteed residual values used in
calculating the gross investment in the lease.

The Group recognises lease payments received under operating leases as income on a straight-line basis over the
lease term as part of 'other operating income’.

Generally, the accounting policies applicable to the Group as a lessor in the comparative period under IAS 17 were not
different from IFRS 18.

2.17.3 Leases - as lessee (policy applicable until 24 February 2019}

Under IAS 17, leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease fransfer substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Finance leases

Assets held under finance ieases are recognised as assets of the Group at their fair value at the inception of the lease
or if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments. The related liability to the lessor is included in the
statement of financial positicn as a finance lease obligation.

Lease payments are apportioned between interest expenses and capital redemption of the liability. Interest is
recognised immediately in profit or loss over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on
the remaining balance of the liability for each period, unless attributable to qualifying assets, in which case they are
capitalised to the cost of those assets. The assets are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and its useful
lives.

Contingent rentals are recognised as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred.
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2.17 Leases (continued)
2.17.3 Leases - as lessee (policy applicable until 24 February 2019) (continued)

Operating leases
Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the [ease term, except if another
systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits will flow to the Group.

Contingent rentals arising under gperating leases are recognised in the pericd in which they are incurred.

Lease incentives and similar arrangements of incentives are taken into account when calculating the straight-line
expense.

2.17.4 Leases {policy applicable from 25 February 2019)

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a

lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for

consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Group

assesses whether:

. the contract inveoives the use of an identified asset - this may be specified explicitly or implicitly, and should be
physically distinct or represent substantially all of the capacity of a physically distinct asset. If the supplier has a
substantive substitution right, then the asset is not identified,

. the Group has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset throughout the
period of use; and
. the Group has the right to direct the use of the asset. The Group has this right when it has the decision-making

rights that are maost relevant to changing how and what purposes the asset is used. In rare cases where the
decision about how and for what purpose the asset is used is predetermined, the Group has the right to direct
the use of the asset if efther:

- the Group has the right to operate the asset; or

- the Group designed the assetin a way that predetermines how and for what purpose it will be used.

This policy is applied to contracts entered into, or changed, on or after 25 February 2019,

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability at the date at which the leased asset is
available for use by the group.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include the
net present value of the following lease payments:

- fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

- variable lease payment that are based on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
coemmencement date;

- amounts expected to be payable by the group under residual value guarantees;

- the exercise price of a purchase option if the group is reasonably certain to exercise that option; and

- payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the group is reasonably certain to exercise the termination option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension options are aiso included in the measurement of the
liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily
determined, which is generally the case for leases in the group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used, being
the rate that the individual lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value
to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment with similar terms, security and conditions.
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217 Leases f{continued)

2.17.4 Leases {policy applicable from 25 February 2019) (continued)

The iease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. it is remeasured when there is a
change in future lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate, there is a change in the Group's estimate
of the amount expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, if the Group changes its assessment of
whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or termination option or if there is a revised in-substance fixed lease
payment.

When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the
right-of-use asset, to the extent that the right-of-use asset is reduced to nil, with any further adjustment required frem
the remeasurement being recorded in profit or loss.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the group:

- where possible, uses recent third-party financing received by the individual lessee as a starting point, adjusted to
reflect changes in financing conditions since third party financing was received;

- uses a buiid-up approach that starts with a risk-free interest rate adjusted for credit risk for leases held by some of
the group, which do not have recent third party financing; and

- makes adjustments specific to the lease, eg term, country, currency and security.

The group is exposed to potential future increases in variable lease payments based on an index or rate, which are not
included in the lease liability until they take effect. When adjustments to lease payments based on an index or rate
take effect, the lease liability is reassessed and adjusted against the right-of-use asset.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over
the lease pericd so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each
period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:

- the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability;

- any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received;
- any initial direct costs; and

- restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the |ease term on a straight-line basis. If the group is reasonably
certain to exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use asset is depreciated over the underlying asset's useful life.
While the group revalues its land and buildings that are presented within property, plant and equipment, it has chosen
not to do so for the right-of-use buildings held by the group. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced
by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease liability.

Payments associated with short-term leases of equipment and vehicles and all leases of low-value assets are
recognised on a straight-line basis as an expense in profit or foss. Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of 12
months or less. Low-value assets comprise |T and other eguipment and small items of office furniture.

2.18 Financing income and expenses

Financing expenses include interest payable, finance charges on shares classified as liabilities and finance charges
on lease liabilities (prior to 24 February 2019 finance charges on finance leases under |AS 17) recognised in profit or
loss using the effective interest method, unwinding of the discount on provisions, and net foreign exchange losses that
are recognised in the income statement (see foreign currency acceunting pelicy).

Financing income comprise interest receivable on funds invested, dividend income, interest income on lease
receivables (prior to 25 February 2019 unearned finance income) and netforeign exchange gains.

Interest income and interest payable is recognised in profit or loss as it accrues, using the effective interest method.
Foreign currency gains and losses are reported on a net basis.
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2.19 Borrowing costs
The Group does not construct material qualifying assets and therefore borrowing costs are expensed in the period
they are incurred.

2.20 Taxation

Tax on profit or loss for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Current and deferred tax is recognised in the
income statement, except to the extent that it relates to tems recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity. in this case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Income tax for the period is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the
reporting period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial
reperting purposes and the armounts used for taxation purposes.

The amount of deferred tax provided is based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying
amount of assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

The Group does not recognise deferred tax liabilities, or deferred tax assets, on temporary differences associated with:
the initial recognition of goodwill, the initial recagnition of assets or liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable
profit other than in a business combination, and differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that
they will probabily not reverse in the foreseeable future. It is the Group's pelicy to reinvest undistributed profits arising
in group companies.

A deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised. The carrying amount of the deferred tax assets are reviewed at each
statement of financial position date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit
will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets
and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same tax authority. Current tax assets and liabilities are
offset where the entity has a legal enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

2.2t Discontinued operations

A discontinued operation is a component of the Group's business that represents a separate major line of business or
geagraphical area of operations that has been disposed of or is held for sale, or is a subsidiary acquired exclusively
with a view to resale. Classification as a discontinued operation occurs upen disposal or when the cperation meets
the criteria to be classified as held for sate, if earlier. When an operation is classified as a discontinued operation, the
comparative income statement is restated as if the operation has been discontinued from the start of the comparative
period.

2.22 Exceptional items
items that are, in aggregate, material in size or nature and not typical of ordinary trading are presented as exceptional
items within their relevant income statement line.

The separate reporting of exceptional items helps provide a better indication of underlying performance of the Group.
The principal items that would be considered as to if they are exceptional items are:

- Costs arising from significant strategy changes that are not considered by the Group to be part of the normal
operating costs of the business. These costs may include restructuring and other associated costs {only where there is
a significant or wholesale restructuring programme)

- Impairment of goodwill

- Impairment of assets or ROU assets when featuring Covid-19 inclusive forecasts

- Profit / (loss) on disposal of subsidiary undertakings

- Negative goodwill

See note 7 for further details.
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3 Accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of the Group's consolidated financial statements requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the
accompanying disclosures.

The estimates and judgements that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial period are as follows:

3.1 Key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies, management has made various estimates. Those which
management has assessed to have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements have been discussed in the individual notes of the reiated financial statement line items.

Goodwill

In assessing the recoverability of goodwill, management's approach is to use operating cash flows derived from the 3-
year strategic planning precess with steady sales growth in years 4 and 5. Cash flows after the five-year pericd are
extrapolated using a terminal value calculation. There are a number of areas of judgement and key assumptions used
across revenue and expenses as part of this process. Further detail on the key assumptions used to calculate the
present value of these cash flows is given in Note 16.1.

Leases
Leases are accounted in accerdance with the requirements of IFRS 16.

Management have estimated the incremental borrowing rate which is used to calculate the lease liability.

The group has used third party specialists to help with the methadology and the data which is used to caiculate the
incremental borrowing rates. The group has used its third-party financing as a proxy, together with risk-free interest
rates which are adjusted for credit risk for individual markets. These are then further adjusted for the individual lease
type, lease term, country that the asset is present in, the currency used to make payments and the security of the
asset

The Group considers that such estimates are judgemental and therefore there is a range of reasonably possible
outcomes. if the incremental borrowing rate decrease by 1%, the lease liability and right of use asset would increase
by £24.9m as at 23 February 2020.

3.2 Critical judgements in applying the Group's accounting policies

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies, management has made various judgements. Those which
management has assessed to have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the consclidated financial
statements have been discussed in the individual notes of the related financial statement line items.

Leases
Leases are accounted in accordance with the requirements of IFRS 16.

Management have applied judgement to determine the jease term for those lease contracts that include an extension
cption or a termination (alse known as break) option. The assessment of whether the Group is reascnably certain to
exercise an extension option or a termination option would significantly impact the value of the lease liabilities and the
right of use asset recognised on the balance sheet. it would also impact the depreciation on the right of use asset and
the interest on the lease liability on the income statement.

Extension options and termination options are included within a number of our markets on our restaurant and office
leases. Management have assessed each extension and termination option to determine whether it is reasonably
certain that the options will be exercised. Extension periods are enly included within the lease term if the Group is
reasonably certain it will exercise the extension option. The lease term is only reduced by the break period if the Group
is reasonably certain it will exercise the termination option.

The Group considers that such estimates can be made with a reasonable degree of accuracy and therefore the range
of reasonably possible outcomes is considered small. However, if all of the extension options around the group are
exercised, the lease liability and right of use asset will increase by £45.5m as at 23 February 2020
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4 Revenue
2020 2019
£'000s £'000s
The Group's reveniue comprises:
Sale of goods in restaurants 1,057,745 1,015,376
Grocery Sales 24574 23,581
Royalties and franchise fees 13,114 12,149
1,095,433 1,051,106
2020 2019
£'000s £'000s
The Group's revenue comprises:
Praducts and services transferred at a point in time 1,082,319 1,038,957
Products and services transferred over time 13,114 12,149

1,095,433 1,051,106

Geographical Analysis of Revenue
All restaurant revenue far the period was derived from sales in the UK, Ireland, Australia, USA, Canada, New Zealand,
and India.

Grocery revenue for the period was derived from sales in the UK, lreland, Australia, USA, Canada, New Zealand,
Malaysia, Singapore and United Arab Emirates.

Royalties and franchise fee revenue was derived from Canada, Australia, New Zealand, Fiji, Malaysia, Singapore, United
Arab Emirates, Qatar, Oman, Bahrain, Zimbabwe, Mauritius, Zambia, Pakistan, Saudi Arabia and Bangladesh.

2020 2019
£'000s £'000s
The Group's revernue comptises;
UK & Ireland 835,294 815,249
North America 103,990 94 556
Australia and New Zealand 136,619 124,713
Other 19,530 16,548

1,095,433 1,051,106

Revenue streams:

Sale of goods in restaurants

The performance obligations are the goods sold in the restaurant, and in some markets, the Group runs a loyalty
programme, which is deemed to be a material right to the customer. Revenues allocated to the goods sold in the
restaurant are recognised at a point in time when the customer obtains the goods, and revenues allocated to the loyalty
programme are recognised at a point in time when the customer uses the [oyalty paints or if the points expire. Revenue
is allocated to performance obligations based on standalone selling prices.

Grocery sales
The performance obligation is the sale of goods to distributors. Revenue is recognised at a point in time when control is
transferred to the distributor.

Royalty income and Franchise fees

The performance obligation is the licence to trade in the market. Revenues are allocated to the licence and this is
recognised overtime of the agreement. The initial franchise fee is not considered as a distinct performance obligation
and as a result, the amounts billed to customers for this are allocated to the licence performance obligation and
recognised overtime of the agreement.
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4 Revenue (continued)
Contract balances

The following table provides information about opening and closing contract liability balances from contracts with
customers:

2020 2019
Current £'000s £'000s
Contract liability 16,625 15,746

The contract liability balance primarily relate to the loyalty programmes in place for restaurant sales and the initial
franchise fee received from customers for access to intellectual property, marketing services and branded materials.

The amount of revenue recognised in current period that was included in the deferred income balance at the beginning

of the period was £8,532k. In addition, the deferred income balance increased due to cash received, excluding amounts
recognised as revenue during the period of £10,508k

5 Other operating income

2020 2019

£000s £'000s

Rental income 102 59
Other operating income 4,427 2,588
4,529 2647

6 Loss or profit before tax
The following amounts were expensed or credited during the period:

2020 2019

£'000s £°000s

Depreciation of plant, property and equipment (81,747) (73,739)
Amortisation of intangible assets (26,480) (26,376)
Depreciation of right of use asset (52,076) -
Operating lease rentals (3,100) (71,613)
Impairment loss on trade receivables (210} (51)
Impairment loss on non current assets (21,117) (2,332)
Impairment of goodwill (39,100) -
Loss on disposal of plant, property and equipment (9,467) (3,656)
7 Exceptional items 2020 2019
£000s £'000s

Exceptional items comprise the foilowing: Note

Impairment of goodwitl 16.1 (32,100) -
Impairment of property, plant and equipment 15, 16.2 (17,515) -
Impairment of ROU assets 18 (3,602) -
Impairment of investment in associates 20 (1,900) -
(62,117 -

Impairment of goodwill is explained in note 16.1. Impairment of property, plant and equipment and ROU assets have
been incurred with the main factor being updating the forecasted cash flows to include Covid-19 assumptions. This has
resulted in local restaurant level CGU impairments, the majonty of which are in Canada. The exceptional items have
been charged to the ‘Administrative expenses' line item.
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8 Auditor's remuneration

The Group paid the following amounts to its auditor in respect of the audit of the financial statements and for services

provided to the Group:

2020 2019

£'000s £'000s

Fees payable to the Group's auditor for these financial statements (238) {124)
Audit of financial statements of subsidiaries of the company (540) {182)
Total audit fees (778) {306)
Taxation compliance services (91) (270)
Other tax advisory services (733) {225)
Total audit and non-audit fees (1,602) {801)

In the previous year, a number of subsidiaries were audited by another firm, and not the group auditor.

9 Staff numbers and costs

The average number of persons employed by the Group (including directors) during the period, analysed by category,

was as follows:

Average number of Nandoca's employed by category 2020 2019
Directors 6 2
Restaurant operatives and management 21,680 20,538
Administration 726 605
22,412 21,145
The aggregate payroll costs of these persons (including directors) were as follows:
2020 2019
£'000s £'000s
Wages and salaries (348,401) (334,677)
Social security costs (21,777) (20,179}
Share based payments (see note 27) 48 (5,400)
Contributions to defined pension contribution plan {6,603) (5,307)
(376,733) (365,563)
10 Directors’ remuneration

2020 2019

£'000s £'000s

Directors’ remuneration {2,158) (583)

The aggregate of remuneration and amounts receivable under long term incentive schemes of the highest paid director

was £693k (2019: £328k), and pension contributions of £1k (2019: £NilY were made on the Director’s behalf.

The directors' remuneration consists of 5 directors (2019: 2 directors) providing services to the Group.

11 Financial income

2020 2019
Note £'000s £'000s
Fair value movement in derivative liability 29 38 66
Interest income - 1,658 182
Foreign exchange gain - - 727
1,696 875
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12 Financial expense

2020 2019
Note £'000s £'000s
Interest expense - (63,847) {68,062)
Interest expense on lease liability 18 (32,019) -
Foretgn exchange loss - (510) -
(96,375) {68,062)
Borrowing costs capitalised to qualifying assets amounted to £Nil (2019: £Nil).
13 Income tax expense
2020 2019
£'000s £'000s
Income Tax Expense
Corporation tax (13,748) (14,283)
Adjustments for prior periods 1,272 1,796
Withholding tax (919) {708)

(13,395) {13,195)

Deferred Tax Expense

Crigination and reversal of temporary differences 6841 1,402
Change in tax rate (81) (470)
Adjustment in respect of prior period (347) (862)

213 70
Total tax expense (13,182) (13,125)

Reconciliation of effective tax rate

2020 2019
£000s £'000s
(Loss)/Profit before taxation (99,421) (25,153)
Tax using the UK corporation tax rate of 18% {2019 19%) 18,890 4779
Reconciling items:
Adjustments in respect of prior periods 8925 934
Non-deductible expenses (including share based payment, interest restrictions and (7693) (4,150)
short lease premium relief)
Ineligible depreciation {892) (1,5986)
Movement in un-recognised deferred tax (23,077) {11,375)
Increase in unrecognised deferred tax asset on |IP amortisation {4,843) (4,080)
Impairment of goodwill (7,606) -
Non-taxable income 213
Withhelding tax (8919) {708)
Difference in overseas tax rate 4973 3,541
Change in tax rate on deferred tax balances (81) (470)
(13,182) (13,125)
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14 Reconciliation of Net Debt

This section sets out an analysis of net debt and the movement in net debt for each of the periods presented.
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2020 2019
£'000s £'000s
Net debt
Cash and cash equivalents 82,693 183,029
Other interest bearing loans and borrowings due within 1 year {13,104} {13,891)
Other interest bearing loans and borrowings due after 1 year (296,066) {313,230)
Loans due to related parties due within 1 year - (125,872)
Loans due to retated parties due after 1 year (644,318) {596,277)
Net debt before IFRS 16 (870,795) (856,341}
Current lease liability (65,784) -
Non-current lease liability (396,498) -
Net debt (1,333,077} (856,341)
Net debt as| Cash flows Non-cash movements| Netdebtas
at 24 at23
February| Interest Other February
2019 accretion 2020
£000s £'000s £'000s £'000s £'000s
Cash and cash equivalents 193,029 (110,336) _ ; 82693
Other interest bearing loans and
barrowings due within 1 year (13,991) 11,021 (11,829) 1,795 (13,104)
Other interest bearing loans and
borrowings due after 1 year (313,230) 20,000 - (2,836) (296,066)
Leans due to related parties due within 1
year (125,872) 127 691 {1,819) - -
Loans due to retated parties due after 1
year (596,277) - (48,880) 819 (644,318)
Net debt as at 23 February 2020 before
IFRS 16 {856,341) 48,376 (62,608) {222) (870,795)
Current lease liability _ 69,300 _ (135,084) (65.784)
Non-current lease liability - - (32,019) (364,479) (396,498)
Net debt as at 23 February 2020 {856,341) 117,676 {94,627) {499,785)| (1,333,077)
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Nando's Group Holdings Limited
Annual report and statutory consolidated financial statements
23 February 2020

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

16 Intangible assets 2020 2019
£'000s £'000s
Intangible assets is made up of the following: Note
Goodwill 16.1 285471 326,504
Other intangibfe assets 16.2 366,181 392,185
651,652 718,689
16.1 Goodwill
2020
£°000s
Cost
Balance beginning of comparative year 418,227
Additions 28
Subsidiaries sold -
Effects of movement in foreign exchange 187
Balance at end of comparative year 418,442
Additions 273
Effects of movement in foreign exchange (2,231)
Balance at end of current year 416,484
Accumulated Amortisation and impairment
Balance beginning of comparative year (91,948)
Disposals -
Effects of movement in foreign exchange 10
Balance at end of comparative year (91,938)
Impairment losses {39,100)
Effects of movement in foreign exchange 25
Balance at end of current year (131,013)
Opening carrying value at beginning of prior period 326,279
Opening carrying value at beginning of current period 326,504
Closing carrying value at end of current period 285,471

Goodwill has decreased from £326.5m to £285.5m. This movement is largely as a result of impairments in North
America and Other regions of £39.1m. There are other smaller changes as a result of decreases of movements in
foreign currencies of £2.2m.

Goodwill considered significant in comparison to the Group's total carrying amount of goodwill has been allocated to
cash generating units or groups of cash generating units referred to as markets as follows:

2020 2019

£'000s £'000s

United Kingdom and Ireland 259,003 259,003
North America 250 34,754
Australia and New Zealand 16,594 18,324
Other 9,624 14,423

285471 326,504

The recoverable amounts of goodwill acquired in a business combination are measured annually. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs of disposal (FVL.DC) and its value in use (VIU). Goodwill is
assessed for impairment on an annual basis.

Management have considered both VIU and FVLDC in determining the recoverable amount. The recoverable amount
for each impairment review is based on a value in use calculation.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

16.1 Goodwill (continued)

The assessment of value in use has been based on cash flow forecasts as derived from forecast EBITDA in the Group
strategic plan which have then been extrapolated and adjusted for forecast capital expenditure and tax. The forecasts
are for 3 years starting from the end of the current financial year, which have been extrapolated to years 4 and 5 for
medetling purposes. A number of assumptions have been utilised in calculating these cash flows, including sales
growth projections, budgeted gross margins, direct and indirect cost growth rates and expected capital expenditure
levels. In line with IFRS requirements, capital and non capital expenditure relating to maintaining the assets in their
current condition has been inciuded whereas forecast capex for enhancing assets and new restaurant openings has
been excluded along with the incremental cash flows that such enhancements would be expected to generate.
Similarly, where current costs exclusively relate to the future openings of new restaurants, these have been excluded
from the value in use calculation. Goodwill is allocated ta, and tested for impairment at, market level as this is the level
at which the performance of the goodwill arises and can be assessed. The disclosures provided have been aggregated
to the region in which the market resides in line with the way the Group results are considered.

Additionally, the impact of Covid-19 has been assessed and the group has prepared financial forecasts incorporating
the impact of Covid-19 and the Government enforced lockdown period as well as the anticipated slow recovery to pre
Covid-19 trading levels. These forecasts have been used to evaluate the value of assets within the group and this
assessment was the main factor in impairment of Goodwill. The Covid-19 impact is considered to be an extraordinary
event and will be disclosed as an exceptional item (Note 7).

After applying these assumptions, the five-year cash flows have been discounted using the weighted average cost of
capital (WACC). The terminal value is based on the discounted fifth year forecast cash flows taking into account
expectations of growth thereafter. The WACC has been provided by a third-party valuation specialist and reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset in question.

A summary of the key assumptions used in the VIU calculation are given below:-

UK & Ireland North Australia Other
America and New
Zealand
Lang-term growth rate 2.0% 20-21% 18-21% 20-359%
WACC Discount rates (pre tax) 8.4% 89-95% 10.3-105% 9.3-15.4%

The results of the impairment review require that an impairment loss is recognised in the North America and Other
regions. The impairment loss in North America was of £34.7m and the impairment loss in the Other regions was of
£4.4m. The impairment losses are due to the expected impact from Covid-18, with sorne restaurants permanently
closing in Canada after the period end as a result of the pandemic. Management have based their assumptions on past
experience and external sources of information, such as industry sector reports and market expectations. The results
of the impairment review show that there is adequate headroom for other regions that have not been impaired and
therefore management are comfortable with the outcome of the impairment review.

Sensitivity analysis

As part of the impairment review, management considered reascnably possible changes in key assumptions.
Sensitivity analysis has been performed on each of three of the key assumptions with the other variables hetd constant.
The Directors consider that for each market a reasonably possible change would be an increase of 1% in the discount
rate, a 0.5% decrease in the long term growth rate or a decrease of 5% in the discounted cash flows throughout the
forecast period and into perpetuity. Such a change does not result in any material impairment charges arising in the UK
& Ireland region or the Australia & New Zealand region.

The North America region is comprised of USA and Canada. The Other region is comprised of India and the Licenced
Markets business. USA, Canada and India have an estimated VIU equal to the total carrying vailue of assets allocated
to the CGU, after impairment of all of the goodwill in these markets.
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16.1 Goodwill (continued}

North America Other
£'000s £000s
Additional impairment loss in the market if discount rate increases by 1% 7,000 15,100
Additional impairment loss in the market if discounted cash flows decrease by 5% 3,200 8,200
Additional impairment loss in the market if the long term growth rate decreases by 0.5% 1,600 5,500

The assumptions are considered to be realistic however it is possible that additional impairment would arise in other
markets if the any of the sensitivities were changed significantly beyond these amounts.

18.2 Other intangible assets

Intellectual  Reacquired Development Software Total
property rights costs

patents and

trademarks
Cost £000s £'000s £°000s £'000s £'000s
Balance at 25 February 2018 481 909 11,651 2,630 304 496 494
Additions - 140 612 370 1,122
Transfers - - - - -
Disposals - {322) (154) - (478)
Effects of movement in fareign exchange (76) (209) 4 (118) (399)
Balance at 24 February 2019 481,833 11,260 3,092 556 496 741
Cost
Balance beginning of current year 481,833 11,260 3,002 556 496,741
Additions 2 203 533 347 1,085
Transfers - - - - -
Disposals - {(1786) - (3) {179)
Effects of movement in foreign exchange (202} (554) 0 {31) {787)
Balance at 23 February 2020 481,633 10,733 3,625 869 496,860
Accumulated Amortisation and impairment
Balance at 25 February 2018 (72,288) {5,782) (B36) (49) (7B, 75%5)
Transfers - - - - -
Amortisation charge in the year {24,087) {1,343) (898) (48) (26,376)
Impairment losses - {166) - - (166)
Disposals - 322 154 - 476
Effects of movement in foreign exchange 28 156 (4) 85 265
Balance at 24 February 2019 (96,347) (6,813) (1,384) {12) (104,556)
Accumulated Amortisation and impairment
Amortisation charge in the year {24,089) {1,098) (1,103) (190) (26,480)
impairment losses (65) (155) - - (220)
Disposals 2 174 - 3 179
Effects of movement in foreign exchange (82) 474 - 6 398
Balance at 23 February 2020 {120,581 {7,418 (2,487) (193) (130,679)
Opening carrying value at beginning of 409,621 5,869 1,994 255 417,739
prior period
Opening carrying value at beginning of 385,486 4,447 1,708 544 392,185
current period
Closing carrying value at end of current 361,052 3,315 1,138 676 366,181

period

Additions during the current periad include £6k (2019: £42k) additions as a result of business combinations described
in note 16.
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16.2 Other intangible assets (continued)

The amortisation is recognised in the income statement within Cost of sales and Other operating expenses. The
impairment expense has been included in administrative expenses within the statement of comprehensive income, as
an exceptional item (note 7), as the impairments were taken due to Covid-19 inclusive forecasts.

Impairment testing - Intellectual Property

Inteltectual property is amortised over 20 years. At the end of the current financial period the IP has a remaining useful
life of 16 years. Management have reviewed the value and performance of the IP, considering both internal and
external indicators. From this review no impairment indicators have been identified. The carrying value of the IP at
year end was £352.5m {2019: £376.0m) and the amortisation charge for the period was £23.5m (2019: £23.5m).

17 Business Combinations

The Group accounted for various business combinations, as a result of acquiring 6 franchise restaurants during the
period. The acquisitions reflect managements continued intent to strengthen the management of the Nando's brand
and further development cf the business.

The acquisition of 6 franchised restaurants in Australia took place at various dates during the period for the total
consideration of £465k, acquiring net identifiable assets of £192k resuiting in goodwill of £273k being recognised. The
net identifiable assets assumed are considered to constitute a business, as defined. As none of the individual
transactions were significant to the Group, these acquisitions have been aggregated for the purposes of the
disclosures beiow.

The goodwill has arisen on acquisition because the fair value of the consideration is greater than the value of the net
assets acquired and represents the additional vaiue relating to the staff and market opperiunity that come with the
acquired businesses, as well as the opportunity to leverage our existing support functions across these operations. The
assets and liabilities identified as part of the business combinations are measured at acquisition date fair value.

The acquisition in Australia of 6 restaurants was the most significant acquisition during the period.

The following are the results of the acquirees since the acquisition date included in the consoclidated statement of
comprehensive income for the reporting period:

2020

£'000s
Revenue 2,785
Restaurant operating profit ' 303

The Profit / (Loss) for the period attributable to Nando's Group Hoidings Limited will not have changed materially had
the acquisition of the business combination taken place at the beginning of the year.

In the priar year the Group reacquired 5 franchise restaurants (4 in Australia and 1 in New Zealand) at various dates
during the period for the total consideration of £278k, acquiring net identifiable assets of £250k resulting in goodwill of
£28k being recognised.

Fair value on acquisition 2020 2019
£'000s £'000s

(a) Consideration transferred

Cash 465 278
Cash purchase adjustments and transfer fees - -
Total cash consideration 465 278
Fair value of original investment - -
Total consideration 465 278
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(b} Assets acquired and liabilities assumed at date of acquisition

Cash and cash equivalents
Trade receivables

Inventeries - 11
Property, plant and equipment 380 425
Intangible assets - reacquired rights 3] 42
Trade payables - -
Provisions - -
Bank overdraft (204) (228)
Deferred tax liability - -
Lecans and advances - -
Net identifiable assets and liabilities 192 250
(c) Net cash outflow on acquisition of business
Censideration in cash 485 278
Less: Cash and cash equivalents acquired (net of overdrafts) 204 228
669 506
(d} Goodwill relating to the acquisition of businesses
Cash 465 278
Fair value of initial Investment - -
Purchase adjustments and transfer fees - -
Other adjustments - -
465 278
Comprised of:
Net identifiable tangible assets 186 208
Intangible assets - reacquired rights 6 42
Intangible assets - Goodwill 273 28
465 278

18 Leases
18.1 Leases as a lessee

This note provides information for leases where the group is a lessee.

(i) Amounts recognised in the balance sheet:

Right of use asset

Right of use assets is made up of the following:
Balance at 25/02/2019

Additions to right of use assets during FY20
Disposals to right of use assets during FY20
Impairment of right of use assets during FY20
Depreciation charge for the year

Effects of movement in foreign exchange
Balance at 23/02/2020

Property QOther Total

£'000s £'000s £'000s

449 420 - 449,420

25,008 - 25,008
{654) - {654)
{3,602) - (3,602)
(52,076) - (52,0786)

683 - 683

418,779 - 418,779
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18.1 Leases as a [essee (continued)

(i) Amounts recognised in the balance sheet (continued):

Total
Lease Liability £'000s
Maturity analysis - contractual undiscounted cash flows
Less than one year 73,223
One to five year 267,154
More than five years 318,108
Total undiscounted lease liabilities at 23 February 2020 658,485
Total Lease Liability at 23/02/2020 (462,282)
of which:
Current Lease Liability (65,784)
Non-Current Lease Liability (396,498)

{ii) Amounts recognised in the statement of profit and loss:
Property IT/Other Total

Depreciation charge of right of use assets £'000s £000s £'000s
Depreciation charge for the year (52,076) - {52,0786)
Total

Other charges recognised due to leases £'000s
Interest expense (included in finance cast) (32,019)
Expense relating to short-term leases (included in cost of goods sold and 31)
administrative expenses)
Expense relating to leases of low-value assets that are not shown above

; . o . (2586)
as short-term leases (included in administrative expenses)
Expense relating to variable |ease payments not included in lease (2.813)

liabilities (included in administrative expenses)

The total cash outflow for ieases in FY20 was £69.3m.
(iii) The group's leasing activiies and how these are accounted for

The group leases various restaurants and offices. Rental contracts are typically made for fixed periods of 12 months to
30 years, but may have extension options as described in (v) below.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease components. The group allacates the consideration in the contract to
the lease and nen-lease components based on their relative stand-alone prices.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide range of different terms and cenditions. The
lease agreements do not impose any covenants other than the security interests in the leased assets that are held by
the lessor. Leased assets may not be used as security for hoerrowing purposes.

impairment tests were performed on ROU assets due to facts and circumstances applicable to certain restaurants
following a review for impairment triggers across the estate in each market. The forecasts included the expected impact
of Covid-19 on our restaurants, inciuding the short-term closure of most restaurants as well as the delayed reopening
of other restaurants. ROU asset impairment losses of £3,602k (2019: nil) relate to individual restaurant CGUs which
are considered fully impaired. The recoverable amount for each impairment review is based on a value in use
calculation and a summary of the key assumptions used in the VIU calculation are given in Note 16.1. The expense
has been included in administrative expenses within the statement of comprehensive income, as an exceptional item
(note 7), as the impairments were taken due to Covid-18 inclusive forecasts.
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18.1 Leases as a lessee {continued)

(iv) Variable lease payments

Some property leases contain variable payment terms that are linked to sales generated from a store. For individual
stores, up to 100% of lease payments are on the basis of variable payment terms with percentages ranging from 6% to
23% of sales. Variable payment terms are used for a variety of reasons, including minimising the fixed costs base for
newly established stores. Variable lease payments that depend on sales are recognised in prefit or loss in the period in

which the condition that triggers those payments occurs.

A 10% increase in sales across all stores in the group with such variable lease contracts would increase total lease
payments by approximately £1.3m.

{v) Extension and termination options
Extension and termination options are included in a number of property and equipment ieases across the group. These

are used to maximise operational flexibility in terms of managing the assets used in the group’s operations. The
majority of extension and termination options held are exercisable only by the group and not by the respective lessor.

18.2 Leases as a lessor

This note provides information for leases where the group holds the head lease and sub-leases as finance leases to
another party.

(iy Amounts recognised in the balance sheet;

Total
£'000s
Net investment in the leases
Maturity analysis - contractual undiscounted cash flows
Less than one year 2,666
One to five year 6,593
More than five years 3,082
Total undiscounted lease payments to be received at 23 February 2020 12,341
Total Net investment in the leases at 23/02/2020 9,628
of which:
Current net investrment in the leases 2,025
Non-Current net investment in the leases 7,603
These balances have been included in the Other debtars line items within note 23.
(ii) Amounts recognised in the statement of profit and loss:
Total
£'000s

Interest income on lease receivables 898
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19 investment in subsidiaries

Nando's Group Hoidings Limited
Annual report and statutory consolidated financial statements

23 February 2020

The Group has the following investments in subsidiaries, all subsidiaries have been included in the consolidated financial

statements of the Group:

Subsidiary Registered Address Ownership |Country of {Class of Principal activity
undertaking 2020 | 2019 |Incorporati |Shares Held
on
Nando's Group Limited | St Mary's House, 42 Vicarage 100% | 100% |UK Ordinary Holding company
Crescent, London, SW11 3LD
Nando's Finance St Mary's House, 42 Vicarage | 100% | 100% |UK Ordinary Holding company
Limited ' Crescert, London, SW11 3LD
Nando's Chickenland |St Mary's House, 42 Vicarage |99.7%]99.7%|UK Ordinary Casual Dining
Limited > Crescent, London, SW11 3LD Restaurants
Nando's Chicken St Mary's House, 42 Vicarage |99.7%|89.7%|UK Ordinary Holding company for lease
Limited * Crescent, London, SW11 3LD
Vicar Lane Bradford  |St Mary's House, 42 Vicarage |[99.7%|99.7%|UK Ordinary Holding company for lease
Limited 3 Crescent, London, SW11 3LD
Broomco Chando's St Mary's House, 42 Vicarage |99.7%|99.7%|UK Ordinary Holding company for lease
Limited Crescent, London, SW11 3LD
Broomco (4061) St Mary's House, 42 Vicarage [99.7%|99.7% [UK Qrdinary Holding company
Limited 3 Crescent, London, SW11 3LD
Nando's Chickenland {2nd Floor, 11/2 Warrington 99.7% | 99.7% |Republic of |Ordinary Casual Dining
Ireland Limited * Place, Dublin 2 Ireland Restaurants
Nando's Limited St Mary's House, 42 Vicarage 100% | 100% |UK Ordinary Manragement, [P company
Crescent, London, SW11 3LD & Franchisor
Nando’s Brand JVCo | St Mary's House, 42 Vicarage 100% | 67% |UK Ordinary Management company
Limited * Crescent, London, SW11 3LD
Nando's Restaurant  {St Mary's House, 42 Vicarage 100% | 100% |UK Ordinary Holding company
Group Holdings Crescent, London, SW11 3LD
Limited
Nando's Restaurants 819 7th Street, Washington, DC | 100% | 100% [USA Ordinary Casual Dining
Group Inc ® 20001 Restaurants
Nanda's Australia Pty 140 Mollison Street, Abbotsford , | 100% | 100% |Australia Ordinary Casual Dining
Limited 3067 Restaurants
Windeacon Pty Limited{40 Mollison Street, Abbotsford ., | 100% | 100% |Australia Ordinary Real Estate
3067
Nando's Chickenland |5865 Kennedy Road, 100% | 100% |Canada Ordinary Holding company
Canada Ipc Mississauga, ON, [4Z 2G3
Nando's PERI PERI 5865 Kennedy Road, 100% | 100% |Canada Ordinary Casual Cining
Canada Inc ® Mississauga, ON, L4Z 2G3 Restaurants
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Subsidiary Registered Address Ownership |Country of [Class of Principal activity

undertaking 2020 | 2019 |Incorporati |Shares Held

Nando's Chickenland |5865 Kennedy Road, 100% | 100% |Canada Qrdinary Casual Dining

Central Limited 8 Mississauga, ON, L4Z 2G3 Restaurants

Nando's Chickenland |5865 Kennedy Road, 100% | 100% |Canada Ordinary Casual Dining

West Limited ? Mississauga, ON, L4Z 2G3 Restaurants

8489963 Canada Inc ¢ |5865 Kennedy Road, 100% | 100% |Canada Ordinary Casual Dining
Mississauga, ON, L4Z 2G3 Restaurants

2418836 Ontario Inc & 15865 Kennedy Road, 100% | 100% |Canada Ordinary Casual Dining
Mississauga, ON, L4Z 2G3 Restaurants

Nando's Services (Pty){10A Victoria Road, Lorentzville, | 100% j 100% |South Africa |Ordinary Management company

Limited Johannesburg, 2094

Nando's New Zealand |Franchise Accountants, 2g 100% | 100% [New Ordinary Casual Dining

Limited Amera Place, Huntingten Park, Zealand Restaurants
Auckland, 2013, New Zealand

Nando's New Zealand |Franchise Accountants, 2g 100% | 100% |New Qrdinary Casual Dining

Restaurants Limited © |Amera Place, Huntington Park, Zealand Restaurants
Auckland, 2013 , New Zealand

Nando's Sub Continent|St Mary's House, 42 Vicarage 100% | 100% UK Ordinary Holding company

Heldings Limited Crescent, London, SW11 3LD

Nando's Setvices India[Flat 10, 1105-1106, Ashoka 100% | 100% (India Ordinary Casual Dining

Private Limited ° Estate, New Delhi - 110001 Restaurants

Nando's Karnataka G910, Ascendas Park Square | 100% | 100% |India Ordinary Casual Dining

Restaurants Private Mall, ITPL. Whitefield, Restaurants

Limited ¢ Bangalore-560066, Karnataka

Delhi NCR JV Shop No. 315-316, Plot No. 3 | 99% | 99% |india Ordinary Casual Dining

(Janpath Restaurants {DLF Promenade Mall, Nelson Restaurants

Private Limited) 8 Mandela Marg, Vasant Kunj,

Nando's Services St Mary's House, 42 Vicarage 100% | 100% |UK Ordinary Management company

Limited ™ Crescent, Londan, SW11 3LD

Nando's Grocery St Mary's House, 42 Vicarage 100% | 100% |UK Ordinary Retail food products

International Limited Crescent, London, SW11 3LD

Nando's Peri Peri USA |819 7th Street Nw Floor 2 100% | 100% (UK Ordinary Retail food products

ing Washington, DC 20001

Nando's Peri Peri 40 Mollison Street, Abbotsford | 100% | 100% |UK Ordinary Retail focd products

Australia (Pty) Ltd ' |VIC 3067 Australia

[l e R N I I O N

- Owned by a subsidiary, Nandc's Group Limited
-89 7% owned by a subsidiary, Nando's Finance Limited
- 100% owned by a 99 7% (2013 99 7°%) owned subsidiary, Nando's Chickenland Limited

- Owned by a subsiciary, Nando's Restaurants Group Holdings Limited.
- Owned by a subsidiary, Nande's Chickeniand Canada Inc

- Owned by a subsidiary, Nando's New Zealand Limited.

- Owned by a subsidiary, Nando's Sub Contirent Holdings Limited

- Owned by a subsidiary  Nandg's Senvices India Private Limited

10 - Owned by a subsidiary, Nando's Limited

11 - Owned by a subsidiary, Nandg's Grocery International Limited

- Jointly owned by subsichanes, Nando's Chickenland Limited and Nande's Limited
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19 Investmentin subsidiaries (continued)

The following subsidiaries will take advantage of the audit exemption set out within section 479A of the Companies Act
2006 for the year ended 23 February 2020.

Subsidiary undertaking Company |Registered address
number

Nando's Chicken Lirmnited Q0166821 |St Mary's House, 42 Vicarage Crescent, London,
SW11 3LD

Vicar Lane Bradford Limited 04505428 |St Mary's House, 42 Vicarage Crescent, London,
SwW11 3LD

Nando's Brand JVYCo Limited 09392876 |St Mary's House, 42 Vicarage Crescent, London,
Sw11 3LD

Nando's Restaurant Group Holdings Limited 09389199 |St Mary's House, 42 Vicarage Crescent, London,
SW11 3LD

As required, Nando's Group Holdings Limited, the parent company, guarantees all outstanding liabilities to which the
subsidiary companies listed in the tables above are subject at the end of the financial year, until they are satisfied in full.

This fs in accordance with Section 479C of the Companies Act 2008. The guarantee is enforceable against Nande's Group

Holdings Limited as the parent undertaking, by any person to whom the subsidiary companies listed above
is liable in respect of those liabilities.

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have materfal non-controlling interests (NCl)

Name of Subsidiary % of NCI Profit allocated to NCI Accumulated non-
ownership controlling interests
held
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
£000s £'000s £'000s £'000s
Nando's Chickenland Limited 0.3% 03% 132 184 1,462 1,330
132 184 1,462 1,330

Summarised Financial Information
Nando's Chickenland

2020 2019
£'000s £'000s

Revenue 801,490 779,421
Profit/(loss) after tax 53,666 74 269
Current assets 30,873 45,846
Current liabilities (451,409) (389,551)
Non-current liabilities {310,826) (24,013)

Significant restrictions
There are no significant restricions on the company's or subsidiary's ability to access or use the assets and settle the
liabilities of the Group.

Financial support
The Group has not given any financial support to a consolidated structured entity.
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20 Investments accounted for using the equity method

Ownership
Investments Registered Address 2020 | 2019 |Country of |Class of Principal activity
accounted for using Incorporati |Shares Held
the equity method on
Nando's Chickenland |Level 8, Symphony House, 49% | 49% [Malaysia Ordinary Casual Dining
Malaysia SDN.BHD Block D13, Pusat Dagangan Restaurants
Dana 1, Jalan PJU 1 A/46,
47301, Petaling Jaya, Selangor
Darul Ehsan
Nando's Singapere 16 Raffles Quay, No. 11-03 49% | 49% |Singapore |Qrdinary Casual Dining
PTE. Limited Hong Leong Building, Restaurants
Singapore, 048581
Nando's Grocery 40 Mollison Street, Abbotsford 20% | 20% |Australia Crdinary Retail food products
Australia VIC 3067 Australia

The investments in Malaysia and Singapore have a different period end of 31 December to the Group due to local
compliance reasons.

There are no restrictions on the ability of associates or joint ventures to transfer funds to the Group in the form of cash
dividends, or to repay loans or advances made by the entity. The debt of Nando's Chickenland Malaysia has been
guaranteed by Nando's Group Holdings Limited.

The Group's interests in equity accounted for investments are is analysed as follows:

Investments Share of profit/(loss) of
equity-accounted
investees, net of tax

2020 2019

£'000s £'000s

Nando's Chickenland Malaysia SDN.BHD (6) 50
Mando's Singapore PTE. Limited (1,100) (985)
Nando's Grocery Australia (1,450)

(1,106) {2,385)

Nando's Nando's
Nando's Chickenland Singapore
Carrying value of investment in Joint Ventures Grocery Malaysia PTE.
and Associates Australia SDN.BHD Limited Total
£'000s £'000s £°000s £'000s
Group investment as at 25 February 2018 - 18,151 2,763 20,914
Additional investment 1,780 283 2,059 4122
Dividends received (320) (320)
2019 Share of profit/(loss) of equity-accounted investees, net of tax (1,450) 50 (985) (2,385)
Group investment as at 24 February 2019 10 18,484 3,837 22,331
Movement for the 2020 year
Additienal investment in associate - - 168 168
Dividends received (10} - - (10
Impairment loss (1,900} (1,900)
2020 Share of profit/(loss) of equity-accounted investees, net of tax - (6} (1,100) (1,108)
Group investment as at 23 February 2020 - 16,578 2,905 19,483

Investments are accounted for using the equity accounting method. Covid-19 was an indicator of impairment therefore the
investment carrying values were measured against the higher of the value in use and the fair value.
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20 Investments accounted for using the equity methed (continued)

The assessment of value in use has been based on cash flow forecasts as derived from forecast EBITDA in the Group
strategic plan which have then been extrapolated and adjusted for forecast capital expenditure and tax. The forecasts are
for 3 years starting from the end of the current financial year, which have been extrapolated to years 4 and 5 for modelling
purposes. A number of assumptions have been utilised in calculating these cash flows, including sales growth projections,
budgeted gross margins, direct and indirect cost growth rates and expected capital expenditure levels. In line with [FRS
requirements, capital and non capital expenditure relating to maintaining the assets in their curent condition has been
included whereas forecast capex for enhancing assets and new restaurant openings has been excluded along with the
incremental cash flows that such enhancements would be expected to generate. Similarly, where current costs exclusivety
relate to the future openings of new restaurants, these have been excluded from the value in use calculation. After applying
these assumptions, the five-year cash flows have been discounted using the weighted average cost of capital (WACC). The
terminal value is based on the discounted fifth year forecast cash flows taking into account expectations of growth
thereafter. The WACC has been provided by a third-party valuation specialist and reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset in question.

The results of the impairment review require that an impairment loss is recognised to reduce the investment value in
Malaysia by £1.9m. The impairment losses are due to the expected impact from Covid-19. Management have based their
assumptions on past experience and external sources of information, such as industry sector reports and market
expectations. The results of the impairment review show that there is headroom for other investments that have not been
impaired and therefore management are comfortable with the outcome of the impatrment review.

A summary of the key assumptions used in the VIU calculation are given below:-

Malaysia
Long-term growth rate 2.0%
WACC Discount rates (pre tax) 11.8%

Summarised Financial Information
Nando's Chickenland Nando's Singapore

Malaysia SDN.BHD PTE. Limited
2020 2019 2020 2019
£'000s £'000s £'000s £'000s
Revenue 37477 34,323 9,577 8,575
Depreciation and amortisation (5,830) (2,099) {2,062) (988)
Interest income 26 15 - 3
Interest expense (1,350) (387) (104) (48}
Income tax (402) (37) - -
Profit/(loss) after tax (12) 101 (2,267) (2,010)
Cther comprehensive income - - - -
Total comprehensive income / (expense) (12) 101 (2,267) (2,010)
Non-current assets 25,924 12,605 5,315 2,446
Current assets (less cash) 3,724 4,089 1,402 1,668
Cash and cash equivalents 1,343 1,893 382 158
Current liabilities (9,807) (7,443) {3,628) {1,604)

Non-current liabilities {15,165) (4,911) (2,017) (381)
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Recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are attributable to the foilowing: Assets Liabilities

2020 2019 2020 2019
£000s £'000s £'000s £'000s
Property, plant and equipment - - (1,967) (3,705)
Intangible assets 134 158 - -
Provisions - 498 - -
Tax value of loss carry-forwards - - - -
Other short term timing differences 88 1,150 - -
Tax assets/{liahilities) 222 1,806 {1,967) (3,705)
Movement in deferred tax Property, Intangible Provisions Unused tax Other Total

Plant & Assets losses short term

Equipment timing

differences

£'000s £'000s £'000s £'000s £'000s £'000s

Balance at beginning of prior period (3,438) 183 574 - 777 (1,924)
Charged to income (280) {1 (68) - 408 59
Foreign Exchange translation difference 13 4 (8) - (35) (34)
Balance at beginning of current period (3,705) 158 498 - 1,150 (1,899)
Charged to income 1,738 (14) {498) - (1,013) 213
Foreign Exchange translation difference 0 (10) - - (49) (59)
Balance at end of current period {1,967) 134 - - 88 (1,745)

As at 23 February 2020, the Group has an unrecognised deferred tax asset of £47,750k (2019: £38,211K) relating to
carried forward losses. The unrecognised deferred tax asset disclosed relates to unused tax losses of £175,420k (2019:
£141,981k). Such losses are appraised at each reporting date based on the expected taxable profits from the Group's
strategic planning process. In determining the probability of available taxable profits against which to utilise these losses,
the Group focusses on the short term forecasts given the risk associated with the longer term plans. Accordingly, these
deferred tax assets remain unrecognised. in the US and Canada, after 20 years any remaining losses expire and could no
longer be used to reduce taxable income.

The Group also has £20,438k (2019: £6,900k) of unrecognised deferred tax assets relating to other deductible timing
differences.

A reduction in the UK corporation tax rate from 19% to 17% (effective from 1 April 2020) was substantively enacted on 6
September 2016, and the UK deferred tax asset/(liability) as at 23 February 2020 has been calculated based on this rate.
tn the 11 March 2020 Budget it was announced that the UK tax rate will remain at the current 19% and not reduce to 17%
from 1 April 2020. This will have a consequential effect on the group's future tax charge. If this rate change had been
substantively enacted at the current balance sheet date the deferred tax liability would have increased by £0.2m.

22 Inventories

2020 2019

£000s £'000s

Raw materials and consumables 5173 6,092
Finished goods 1,407 1,428
6,580 7.520

Raw materials, consumables and changes in finished goods recognised as cost of sales in the period amounted to
£266,953k (2019: £195,763k). There were no material charges or credits from either the write-down of inventories to net
realisable value nor from reversals. Any such amounts are included in Cost of Sales. All of the inventory is expected to be
recoverable within 12 months,

59



Notes to the financial statements (continued)
23 Trade and other receivables

Current

Amounts due from related undertakings
Trade receivables due from third parties
Other debtors

Prepayments

Total current

Non-Current

COther trade receivables due from third parties
Other debtors

Prepayments

Total non-current

Nandeo's Group Holdings Limited
Annual report and statutory consolidated financiat statements
23 February 2020

2020 2019
£000s £'000s
2,993 1,800
7.885 12,546

13,228 6,746
8,972 12,408
33.078 33.500
2,432 690
8,309 -
- 2,495
10,741 3.185

included within Cusrent and Non-Current Other debtors are amounts related to sub-leases (see note 18). Related party

details are provided in note 34.

24 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents

25 Other interest bearing, finance leases, non interest bearing loans and related party loans

Non-current
Secured bank loans
Finance lease
Other loans

Total other interest bearing loans and borrowings

Loans due to related parties

Total other interest bearing loans and borrowings

Current liabilities

Current portion of secured bank loans
Finance lease

Other loans

Total other interest bearing loans and borrowings

Loans due to related parties

Total liabijities

Secured bank loans
Finance lease

Other loans

Loans due to related parties

2020 2019
£000s £'000s

82,693 193,029
2020 2019
£'000s £'000s
(293,915) (310,856}
- (130)

(2,151) (2,244)
(296,066)  (313,230)
(644,318)  (596,277)
(940,384) _ (909,507)
(12,983)  ({13,859)
- (132)

(121) -
(13,104) (13,991
(0}  (125,872)
(13,104} _ (139,863)
(306,898)  (324,715)
- (262)

(2,272) (2,244)
(644,318)  (722,149)
(953,488) (1,049,370)
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Secured bank loans
The bank ioans relates to Nando's Finance Limited.

Bank loans: Nando's Finance Limited Term Loan A. B and Revolving facility

Nando's Finance Limited has a £500m facility which bhears interest at LIBOR plus a margin between 1.75% and 2.25%
with interest payabie on a monthly or quarterly basis; this facility includes the revolving facility and Term loans A and B,
which continue to be available to the group until 2023 and 2024 respectively. There was £315m outstanding at the year
end.

Included in bank loans are unamortised debt costs, relating to the above agreements, of £3.4m (2019: £4.6m). The full
cost in the year of amortised debt costs is disclosed in Note 12. This includes £1.2m of fees incurred in arranging the
amended loan agreement.

The loans are secured by debentures and unlimited guarantees from Nande's Chickenland Limited and a first legal
charge over the short leasehold property held by Nando's Finance Limited and it's subsidiaries. The total value of
property held as security totals £171.4m (2019: £180.8m) and is included in note 14.

Other loans
Bank loan - Australia

Nando's Australia Pty Ltd has a fixed term bank facility which is available until May 2023, which bears interest at the
Bank Bill Swap Bid Rate (BBSY).

Loans due to refated parties (Group)

Yellowwoods Holdings SARL Deep Discounted Bonds {DDB) ¢ontinue to be available to the Group, the effective interest
payable at the time of maturity of the DDB's have effective interest rates between 3.5% and 8.5%, are unsecured and
mature on variocus dates ranging from 2022 - 2027.
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Group
The bank loans, related party loans and other loans included in other interest-bearing foans, non-interest bearing loans
and boarrowings are sumrmarised in the table of terms and conditions befow.

Currency Nominal Year of Face value Carrying Face value Carrying
interest rate maturity amount amount
2020 2020 2019 2019
£'000s £'000s £'000s £'000s
Secured loan
Bank lean - term GBP LIBOR 2023 50,000 49,218 65,000 63,127
loan A +margin
Bank loan - term GBP LIBOR 2024 250,000 242 680 250,000 241,588
loan B +margin
Bank lcan - GBP LIBOR 2023 15,000 15,000 20,000 20,000
revolving facility +margin
Finance Leases
Finance lease usD 262 262
Related party
Yellowwoods GBP 8.50% 2026 51,000 75,482 51,000 69,649
Treasury 2 SARL
Yellowwoods GBP 8.35% 2025 104,250 153,354 104,250 141,615
Treasury 2 SARL
Yellowwoods GBP 8.25% 2024 93,250 136,438 93,250 126,040
Treasury 2 SARL
Yellowwoods GBP 7.50% 2019 - - 95615 125,872
Treasury 2 SARL
Yellowwoods GBP 8.00% 2022 120,000 173,099 120,000 160,504
Treasury 2 SARL
Yellowwoods GBP 8.25% 2024 46,106 65,343 46,106 60,270
Treasury 2 SARL
Yellowwoods GBP 8.50% 2027 26,000 35,508 26,000 32,733
Treasury 2 SARL
Yellowwoods AUD 3.50% 2023 5,094 5,094 5,466 5,466
Treasury 2 SARL
Other loans
Bank [oan - Australia AUD BBSY 2023 2,067 2,067 2,208 2,208
Other loans 205 205 36 36

762,972 553,488 879,193 1,049,370

This note provides information about the contractual terms of the Group's interest-bearing loans and non-interest bearing
loans and borrowings, which are measured at amortised cost. For more information about the Group's exposure to
interest rate and foretgn currency risk, see note 29,

Face value of debt represents amounts initially borrowed, while the carrying value of debt includes accrued interest
where the terms of the instrument require repayment of interest at the end of the loan term.
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26 Trade and other payables

2020 2019
£'000s £'000s
Current

Trade payables due to third parties {50,157} (41,578}
Other payables due to third parties (3,367) (4,586}
Contract liability (16,625) (15,748)
QOther taxation and social security (25,246) (25,752)
Accruals and other creditors {67,203) (77,271)
(162,598) (164,933)

Non-current
Accruals and other creditors (8,664) (30,833)

(171,262) (195 766)

Inciuded within accruais and other creditors is £8,664K (2019: £30,833k) for the Group which is expected to be settied in
mere than 12 months. The prior year balance primarily related to liabiities arising from lease contracts. At the start of
the current year, due to IFRS 16 requirements, these liabilities have been written down against the Right Of Use asset.

Related party details are provided in note 34.

27 Share based payments

The Group has two share-based payment schemes in place, Partnership V1 and the Group Partnership scheme.

Group Partnership Scheme
The Group has formed an employee share scheme during the prior year which is designed to remunerate the
employees of the Group with shares in the Company.

The Group Partnership scheme is deemed to be equity settled, therefore the fair value of amounts payable to the
employees is recognised as an expense in the employing company with a corresponding increase in equity to represent
the contribution received.

Under the employee share scheme the employees hold the shares immediately on award, but there is a designated
compulsory holding period running from November 2016 to November 2020, during which employees waive their voting
and dividend rights in respect of their shares and may not transfer, charge or otherwise dispose of their shares without
consent of the Company. The shares granted to employees under the scheme shall vest under performance related
criteria as well as individual personal targets; if they do not vest, then they are returned to the Company.

The Group retains the beneficial rights to the unvested shares held by employees. As the shares are not publicly traded
and therefore cannot be easily realised, a separate arrangement has been putinto place between the employees and L
Periman SECS, which will acquire the shares after vesting under a put and call. The acquisition of the shares by L
Periman SECS will be seftled in cash.

Shares in issue to the employees of Nando’'s Group Holdings Limited's subsidiaries:

2020 2019
Shares Shares
Shares at beginning of the pericd 10,240,964 10,240,964
B1 shares issued during the period - -
B2 shares issued during the peried - -
83 shares issued during the period - -
QOutstanding shares at end of the period 10,240,964 10,240,964

Measurement of fair values

The fair value of the B Shares has been measured using the Monte Carlo valuation model. Service and non market
performance conditions attached to the arrangements were not taken into account in measuring fair value. The inputs
used in the measurement of the fair values at grant date of the B Shares were as follows:
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Grant Date  Grant Date

17 January 16 November

2018 2016

Fair value (£} 1.13 1.04
Share price (£) 11.16 1077
Hurdle (Exercise price) (£) 12.26 12.26
Capped value (average) (£) 16.10 16.10
Expected average exercise date 3.7 years 4.0 years
Risk free rate 0.87% 0.54%
Expected volatility 30% 30%
Expense recognised in profit and loss in relation to Group Partnership Scheme: 2020 2019
£'000s £'000s

Share-based payment expense (48) 1670

Due to the mandatory holding period, no shares were exercisable at the end of the period. These share based payment
schemes have been recognised in accordance with IFRS 2 and the accounting policy described in 2.12. The shares did
vest at the end of year, however the scheme was closed post the balance sheet date. There was no charge to the group
given the scheme's closure.

Parinership Vi

The employee benefit programme operates in a manner similar to the Group Partnership scheme. However, unlike the
group partnership scheme, Partnership VI is designed to allow Nanda's Chickenland Limited's employees to invest in
the business and participate in the risks and rewards of ownership of the business in this way. Accordingly, employees
hold shares in Nande's Chickenland Limited with a designated holding period running from March 2015 to February
2018.

The shares granted to employees under Partnership VI shall vest under a ratcheted performance-related criteria,
whereby below a minimum level of EBITDA no vesting shall occur. The consideration of vested shares shall be based
on a defined EBITDA multiple valuation methodology.

In Qctober 2018, Nando's Finance Limited was assigned the right to acquire the shares issued under the Nando's
Chickenland Partnership Scheme VI. The assignment resulted in a reclassification of the scheme to a cash-settled
scheme and a charge of £3.7m made to Administrative Expenses during the prior year. There were no charges for the
scheme in the current year.

Partnership Vi

During the year, Nando's Chickenland Limited issued 770,000 B2019 shares to employees and to directors. The
Nando's Chickenland Partnership scheme VIl has a designated compulsery holding period running from March 2018 to
February 2021, during which employees and directors waive their voting and dividend rights in respect of their shares
and may not transfer, charge or otherwise dispose of their shares without the consent of the Company. The shares
purchased by employees under Partnership VIl shall vest under a ratcheted performance-reiated criteria, whereby below
a minirum level of EBITDA no vesting shall occur. The consideration of vested shares shall be based on a defined
EBITDA multiple valuation methodology. The scheme is accounted for as an equity-settled share-based payment
transaction. The grant date fair value of the shares was not considered material.

Expense recognised in profit and loss in relation to Partnership Vi and Partnership Vii 2020 2019
schemes:
£'000s £'000s
Share-based payment expense - 3,730
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28 Provisions

Onerous Asset Other Total
Lease Retirement
Obligation
£'000s £'000s £'000s £'000s
Balance at beginning of prior period (2,142) 0 (407) (2,549)
Provisions made during the year (390) - (1,6286) (2,0186)
Utilised during the period 300 - 242 542
Effects of movement in foreign exchange 58 - (27) 31
Balance at beginning of current period (2,174) - (1,818) (3,992)
Provisions made during the year - (4,247) (1,161) (5,408)
Reclassified on transition to [FRS 16 1,860 - - 1,860
Utilised during the period - - 434 434
Provisions reversed during the year 175 - 466 641
Unwinding of discounted amount - (343) - (343)
FX translation reserve 139 - 90 229
Balance at end of current period - (4,590) (1,98%) {6,579)
2019
Non-current provisions (1,988) - - (1,988)
Current provisions (1886) - (1,818) (2,004)
(2,174) - (1,818) (3,992)
2020
Non-current provisions - (4,247) (301) (4,548)
Current provisions - (343) (1,688) (2,031)
- (4,590) (1,989) (6,579)

Onerous lease provision

Onerous lease provisions related to leases where the obligations under the lease arrangement exceed the economic
benefits expected to be received. The provision is recorded by comparing the estimated future cash flows associated
with a particular restaurant with the minimum committed future lease payments. Where the minimum future lease
payments exceed the expected estimated future cash flows, a provision was created to reflect the onerous element of
the lease obligation. In determining the existence of an onerous lease obligation, a degree of uncertainty exists in the
estimation of future cash flows associated with such sites. The value of the provision was assessed at each financial
reporting date. At the start of the current year, due to iFRS 16 requirements, the onerous lease provision has been
written down against the Right Of Use asset.

Asset retirement obligation

Asset retirement obligation is related to expected future costs associated with exiting leases and vacating premises. The
associated cash outflows are expected to occur at the date we exit the lease amangements in place. The present value
of these expected future costs is recorded as a provision, and the provision is unwound overtime.

The present value of these costs is added to the Right Of Use asset.

Other provisions
Other provisions are made up of a number of individually insignificant provisions, from matters such as legal claims. The
value of each provision is assessed individually at each financial reporting date.
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29 Financial risk management

The Group’s operations expose it to a number of financial risks. A risk management programme has been established to
protect the Group against the potential adverse effects of these financial risks. There has been no significant change in
these financial risks since the prior period. As a holding entity, the Company is not exposed the risks outlined below.

Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its
contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Group's receivables from customers and investment securities.

A small amount of the Group's revenue transactions are completed with the granting of credit because payment is after
the receipt of goods or services. This primarily relates to the Grocery and Franchise revenue streams. Prior to sales on
credit, customers are assessed for creditworthiness and where appropriate, the Group obtains security for its exposure
to the risk of default. Credit limited are also imposed on customers and reviewed regularly.

The Group's maximum exposure to credit risk totals £19.2m (2019: £20.4m) and relates to third party debt. £3.5m
{2019 £3.6m) of debt is overdue by more than 30 days and having considered the historical payment behaviour and
customer credit nsk, £328k has been provided as the expected loss allowance.

A summary of the Group's exposure to credit risk for trade receivables by credit risk rating grade is not presented given
the expected credit loss is not material.

The movement in the allowance for impairment in respect of trade receivables during the year was as follows.

2020
£'000s
Balance at 24 February 2019 310
Impairment loss recognised 210
Impairment loss reversed -
Amounts written off (192)
Balance at 23 February 2020 328
Liquidity risk

Liguidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they falf due. The Group
maintains sufficient cash reserves. Management review cash flow forecasts on a regular basis to determine whether the
Group has sufficient cash reserves to meet future working capital requirements and to take advantage of business
opportunities. The Group's funding strategy includes use of overdraft facilities, detailed cash flow forecasting and
monitoring the maturity of financial liabilities to avoid the risk of a shortage of funds. The Group has access to sufficient
funding and banking faciiities. The Group had cash of £82.7m {2019: £193.0m) as at the period end.
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29 Financial risk management (continued}

The majority of the secured bank loans relate to borrowing within the principal UK market that in the current perod
accounts for the majority of trade. Secured bank loans total £306.9m (2019: £324.7m) of which £306.9m (2019:
£324 7m) relates to the UK Nando's market.

As at the 23 February 2020 the Group has total undrawn facilities of £110m available, refer note 25.

The following are the contractual maturities of financial liabilites:

Group 2020 Carrying Contractual Oto<iyr 1to2yrs 2to5yrs Over 5 yrs
Amount  Cash flow

Non-derivative financial £'000s £'000s £'000s £'000s £'000s £'000s

liabilities

Secured bank loans (306,898) (358,456) (25,689) (25,275) (307,492) -

Related party loans (644,318) (917,613) - - (496,250) {421,363)

Trade payables and (171,262) (171,262) (162,598) (8,664) - -

other payables

Other Loans (2,272) (2,272) - - (2,272) -

Derivative financial liabilities

Derivative Financial Liability {88) - - - - -
(1,124,848) (1,449,603) (188,287 (33,839) (806,014) {421,363)

Group 2019 Carrying Contractual Oto<iyr 1tc2wrs 2to5yrs Qver 5 yrs

Amount  Cash flow

Non-derivative financiat £'000s £'000s £'000s £000s £'000s £'000s

liabilities

Secured bank loans (324,715) (389,560) (26,103) (25,689) (83,871) (253,897)

Related party loans (722,149) (1,045654) (127,691) - {401,452) (516,511)

Trade payables and (195,766) (195,766) (164,933) (30,833 - -

other payables

Qther Loans {2,244) (2,244) - - (2,244) -

Derivative financial liabilities

Derivative Financial Liability (136) - -

(1,245010) (1,633,224} (318.727) _ (56,522) __ (487,567) (770,408)

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of our financial instruments will fluctuate because of
changes in market prices. The Group is exposed to the following market risks: foreign currency risk and interest rate
risk.

Foreign currency risk

Fareign currency risk refers to the risk that the value of a financial commitment of recognised asset or liability will
fluctuate due to changes in foreign currency rates. The Group is mostly exposed to foreign currency risk on net
investments in foreign subsidiaries. There are no hedging arrangements in place to mitigate this exposure but the
Group manages the exchange risk oh translation of investments in foreign companies with borrowings denominated in
the same currency.
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Within foreign restaurant markets, foreign currency exposure is managed because revenue is generated in the local
functional currency and the vast proportion of the costs incurred are in the same currency denomination. Remaining
foreign exchange exposure in the Group arises on intergroup trade, which is limited to management fees and royalties
on franchise income. Within the Grocery business, where practicable, foreign currency exposure on manufacturing
costs is reduced by collecting customer revenue denominated in the same currency as those manufacturing costs.

Foreign currency sensifivity analysis

A 10% strengthening of the following currencies against the pound sterfing would have increased / (decreased) equity
by the amounts shown below, the weakening of the same currencies will have equal and opposite effects. The
strengthening of these currencies would not have been a significant effect to Profit / (loss). This calculation assumes
that the change occurred at the balance sheet date and had been applied to risk exposures existing at that date. This
analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular other exchange rates and interest rates, remain constant:

2020 2019
Effect on equity £'000s £'000s
AUD (854) (1,230)
usD (2,307) (3,121)
CAD 3,083 951
Other (972) (1,404)
Total (1,050) (4,804)

interest rate risk

The Group has £953m (2019: £1,049m) of interest bearing loans and borrowings of which £644m (2019: £722m) is a
fixed rate deep discounted bond and has no interest rate sensitivity. The remaining debt is made of various loans and
facilities with variable rates (refer note 25).

The Group's main interest rate risk arises from the Group's banking facilities with variable rates, which expose the Group
to cash flow interest rate risk. The policy of the Group is to review cash flows and forecasts on a regular basis in order
to repay the revolving portion of the facility when not required. This policy will reduce the exposure to any interest rate
fluctuations.

In respeonse to this risk, during the period ending February 2016 the Group entered inte a five year derivative which
covers £250m of the £335m bank debt. The derivative provides a cap on the LIBOR rate of 2.5% and a floor of 0.75%
to help mitigate any significant exposure to interest rate risk. While the instrument provides an economic hedge to help
manage the cash flow interest rate risk, hedge accounting is not applied.

The fair value of the derivative financial liability as at 23 February 2020 is £98k (2019: £136k), the fair value movement
of £38k during the year was recagnised in financial income, refer note 11.

Sensitivity analysis

An increase or (decrease) of 100 basis points in interest rates as at 23 February 2020 would have
increased/(decreased) interest paid under this agreement by £3.2m (2019: £3.4m). This calculation assumes that the
change cccurred at the balance sheet date and had been applied to risk exposures existing at that date.

The derivative instrument provides a cap on the LIBOR rate of 2.5% and a floor of 0.75%. As LIBOR was below 0.75%
for much of the last year, payments were made under this contract which had LIBOR been higher by 100 basis points,
no payments would have been made, and had LIBOR been lower by 100 bps payments would have been greater by
£2.8m (2019: £2.8m). Had that different level of LIBOR endured at the balance sheet date, there would have been a
further impact of fair value movements on the derivative however these are not expected to have been material to the
company.

There would be no other material impact on reserves as a result of changes in interest rate.
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Capital management
The following table summarises the capital of the Group as at 23 February 2020 {and as at 24 February 2019):

2020 2019
£°000s £°000s
Net Debt 870,795 856,341
Equity (11,930) 103,261
858,865 959,602

The Group’s policy is to use banking arrangements and loans from related parties to meet anticipated funding
requirements. These bomrowings, together with cash generated from operations, are loaned internally or contributed as
equity to certain subsidiaries if they require funding for new restaurants. The Group does not routinely make additional
issues of capital, other than for the purpese of raising finance to fund significant acquisitions or developments.

Fair values
The derivative liability is the only balance held at fair value, which is calculated by discounting the expected cash
outflows at the contract interest rate. The inputs used in these discounted cash flow calculations are at level 2 in the
hierarchy.
Level 1 - Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included in level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly or indirectly
Level 3 - Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability

There are no level 3 assets or liabilities held and there are no transfers between classes during the period (or
comparative).

The fair values of all other financial instruments, included within trade and other receivables, or within financial liabilities,
are not considered to be materially different from their carrying amounts.

30 Derivative financial instruments

The Groups derivative financial instruments are carried at fair value in the financial statements:

2020 2019
£'000s £'000s
Derivative Financial Liability (38) (136)

The key terms of the derivative financial liability are disclosed in note 29.
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31 Capital and reserves

Share capital

2020 2019
Authorised Share Capital £'000s £'000s
50,000,000 (2019: 180,000,000) ordinary shares of £3.60 (2019: £1) each 180,000 180,000
10,777,537 {2018: 10,777 ,537) ordinary B shares of £0.001 each 11 11
180,011 180,011
Issued and fully paid for
50,000,000 (2019: 180,000,000) ordinary shares of £3.60 {2019: £1) each 180,000 180,000
10,240,964 (2019: 10,240,964) ordinary B shares of £0.001 each 10 10
180,010 180,010
Recoenciliation of the number of shares cutstanding
Opening balance at beginning of current period 180,010 50,010
Share consolidation of 130,000,000 shares (2019: nil) (130,000)
Shares issued nil (2019: 130,000,000} - 130,000
Closing balance at end of current peried 50,010 180,010

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to one
vote per share at meetings of the Company.

Ordinary B shares are held by employees under share based scheme. The holders of ordinary B shares are not entitled
to receive any income or capital until the hurdle amount per share has been reached in respect of that crdinary B Share,
the detail relating to the hurdle amount is detailed in Nate 27. The transfer of these shares is at the discretion of the
Directors of the Campany.

During the financial year, the 180,000,000 'A’ shares in issue were consolidated into 50,000,000 'A’ shares (a ratio of 3.6
to 1). During the prior year the Company issued 130,000,000 ordinary shares of £1 each to its immediate parent L
Perlman SECS, settled in cash.

Foreign currency translation reserve
The foreign currency translation reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences arising from the translation of the

financial statements of foreign operations, as well as from the translation of liabiliies that hedge the Company’s net
investment in a foreign subsidiary.

Capital contribution reserve

The Capital Contribution Reserve reflected the credit entries in respect of past share schemes, which resulted in a
corresponding charge to employee costs in previous accounting periods. As these schemes are now fully vested, the
balance on the reserve has been transferred to retained earnings during the period to give a clearer presentation.

Own share reserve
Under the Group Partnership Scheme the company has issued shares to employees, employees of certain subsidiaries,
and employees of L Perlman SECS who are providing services to the Group. The schemes in place are detailed in Note

27. The company retains the beneficial rights of the shares required to settle rewards granted under equity-settied share-

based payment plans The reserve has been transferred to retained eaming reserve during the period.

Dividends
2020 2019
The following dividends were recognised during the period: £'000s £'000s
£0p (2019: £0.0p) per qualifying ordinary share - -
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32 Operating leases

Non-cancellable operating lease rentals are payable as follows: 2020 2019
£'000s £'000s

Future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases:
Less than one year - (66,208)
Between one and five years - (240,305)
More than five years - {321,863)
- (628,374)

Prior to 25 Feb 2019, the Group recognised operating leases in line with 1AS 17. Leases where the Group does not
retain substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset were classified as operating leases. Operating
lease rental payments were recognised as an expense in the income statement on a straightline basis over the lease
term. From 25 Feb 2019, the Group no longer recognises operating leases in line with IAS 17 and instead recognises
right-of-use assets and lease iiabilities in line with IFRS 16. Refer to note 18 for further details.

33 Commitments and contingencies

Capital commitments
At the period end the Group has outstanding capital commitments in respect of capital expenditure contracted but not
provided for in the financial statements for £2 167k (2019: £3,854k).

34 Related parties

Nanda's Group Holding's Limited is a subsidiary of L Periman SECS which is the ultimate parent and controlling party,
incorporated in Luxembourg and conducts business from 39 avenue Monterey, L-2163, Luxembourg. No consolidated
accounts of this group are available.

The largest group in which the results of the group are consolidated is that headed by Nando's Group Holding's Limited.
No other group financial statements include the results of Nando's Group Holding's Limited.

The Group's investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures have been disclosed in notes 19 and 20.

The Group has identified the following related parties, which have been disclosed accordingly;
All About Foods Limited: All About Foods Limited is a related party to group by virtue of the two parties having
common directors.

Yellowwoods Treasury: Yellowwoods Treasury 2 SARL is a related party to the group by virtue of the two parties
having common directors.

Group

Transactions with key management personnel

Key management personnel include directors of the company and senior managers across a number of companies
within the Group.

The compensation of key management personnel is as follows :

2020 2019

£'000s £'000s

Key management remuneration including social security costs 5810 7,688
Share based remuneration (272) 3,908
Company contributions to money purchase pension plans 14 14
5,552 11,610
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Related party balances
The Group has the following significant related party balances:

Deep Discounted Bonds

The Group have issued deep discounted bonds to Yellowwoods Treasury totalling £445 700k (2019: £541,687k). The
details and terms of the deep discounted bonds are disclosed in note 25. Included in the carrying value of the DDB's in
note 25 is accrued interest payable of £198,618k (2019: £180,453k) in the Group.

Related party trading receivables
The Group have a trade receivable balance with All About Foods at period end of £1,772k (2019: £1,325k).

Related party transactions
The Group have the following significant related party transactions:

Revenue
The Group have the following transactions with All About Foods. Sale of goods for the period totalled £10,547k (2019:
£13,735k) and royalty income received totalled £1,405k (2019: £1,228k).

Financial expense
The Group have incurred interest expense an the deep discounted bonds issued to Yellowwoods Treasury of £51,724k
(2019: £53,299k).

35 Subsequent events

Covid-19

On 30 January 2020, the World Health Organisation (WHQ) announced Covid-19 as a global health emergency. The
Covid-19 pandemic increased in prevalence throughout the markets where Nando's operates in March and April 2020
with country-wide closures of all eat-in restaurant facilities issued by some Governments, causing our restaurants to
close in those markets.

In the immediate weeks after closure, the Group focused on securing cash availability and minimising cash outgeings to
optimise cash flow. The Group is also grateful for Govemment action and support and successfully applied to
Government schemes in some of the markets in which it operates.

Subsequent to those events, the Group has moved to cautiously and carefully re-open restaurants which had been
closed due to lockdowns initially for off-premise sales (Collect and Delivery) before restarting on-premise dining with
social distancing and other measures to ensure the safety of employees and customers. The Group's sales performance
is ahead of management expectations, albeit some way below the performance in the period prior to Covid-19.

The impact of Covid-19 has been assessed and the group has prepared financial forecasts incorporating the impact of
Covid-19 and the Government enforced lockdown period as well as the anticipated slow recovery to pre Covid-19
trading levels. These forecasts have been used to evaluate the value of assets within the group and this assessment
has been the main factor in causing an impairment of Goodwill and other assets. The Covid-19 impact is considered to
be an extraordinary event and will be disclosed as an exceptional item (Note 7).

At the date of signing, we have re-opened all but a handful of restaurants for a blend of either Eat-In, Collect or Delivery.

Share 1ssue
In September 2020, the Group secured additional funding from its shareholders by raising £100 million in new equity
from its immediate parent.
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Company Statement of Financial Position
as at 23 February 2020 (24 February 2018)

Non-current assets

Investment in group companies
investment in equity accounted investees
Loans due from inter-group parties
Loans due from related parties

Current assets

Debtors

Loans due from related parties
Loans due from inter-group parties
Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

Current liabilities

Creditors

Loans due to inter-group parties
Loans due to related parties

Non-current liabilities
Loans due to related parties

Total liabilities
Net assets

Equity

Share Capital

Share Based Payment Reserve
Retained Earnings

Total eguity

The notes on pages 75 to 88 form an integral part of the financial statements.

The financial statements on pages 73 to 74 were authorised by the Board of Directors on 3{”{

signed on its behalf.

LKR-WL' ?@# ,
e Logan Tait

Director
Company registered number: 068451677

Note
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Nando's Group Holdings Limited
Annual report and statutory consolidated financial statements
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Company registered number 06451677

2020 2019
£'000s £'000s
205,665 263,543
19,644 22,349
168,457 -
- 158,285
393,766 444 177
4,473 5731
- 88,753
71,643 -
25,155 139,371
101,277 233,855
495,043 678,032
(2,565) (317}
(68,373) (67,066)
- {125,860)
(70,938) {193,243}
(273,949} (253,372)
{273,949} (253,372)
(344,887) {446,615)
150,156 231,417
180,010 180,010
3,368 3,418
(33,222) 47,991
150,156 231,417
....... 2020 and were
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Notes to the financial statements

1 General information

Nando's Group Holdings Limited {the “Company”) is a private company, limited by shares, incorporated, registered and
domiciled in the England. The registered number is 06451677 and the registered address is St Mary's House, 42 Vicarage
Crescent, Battersea, London, SW11 3LD.

The Company is a holding company for an international chain of casual dining restaurants.

2 Summary of significant accounting policies

2.1 Basis of preparation

These financial statements were prepared in accordance with Financial Reperting Standard 101 Reduced Disclosure
Framewark (“FRS 101”). The accounting policies set out below have, unless otherwise stated, been applied consistently to all
periods presented in these financial statements. In the transition to FRS 101 from Adopted IFRS, the Company has made no
measurement and recognition adjustments.

The principal accounting policies outlined below.

2.2 Disclosure exemptions adopted

in preparing these financial statements, the Company applies the recognition, measurement and disclosure requirements of
International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the EU (“Adopted IFRSs"), but makes amendments where
necessary in order to comply with Companies Act 2006 and has set out below where advantage of the FRS 101 disclosure
exemptions has been taken.

- a Cash Flow Statement and related notes;

- The effects of new but not yet effective IFRSs;

- Disclosures in respect of transactions with wholly owned subsidiaries;

- Disclosures in respect of the compensation of Key Management Personnel;

- Disclosures in respect of capital management;

- The effects of new but not yet effective IFRSs;

- Disclosures in respect of the compensation of Key Management Personnel; and

- Disclosures of transactions with a management entity that provides key management personnel services to the company.

As permitted by section s408(3) of the Companies Act 2006, the company is exempt from the requirement to present its own
profit and loss account. As the consolidated financial statements of Nande's Group Holdings Limited include the equivalent
disclosures, the Company has also taken the exemptions under FRS 101 available in respect of the following disclosures.

- Certain disclosures required by IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement and the disclosures required by IFRS 7 Financial
Instrument Disclosures.

- IFRS 2 Share Based Payments in respect of group settled share based payments.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

23 Going Concern
Refer to note 1 in the Consolidated Financial Statements for further details on the preparation of the financial statements on a
going concern basis.

2.3  Standards issued and applied for the first time in 2020
The following new and revised Standards and Interpretations have been adopted in the current period. Unless otherwise
disclosed, their adoption has had no material impact on the amounts reported in these financial statements.

« IFRS 16 in respect of Leases is effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019. IFRS 16 results
in almost all leases being recognised in the statement of financial position, as the distinction between finance and
operating leases is removed. Under this standard, an asset (the right to use the leased item) and a financial liability to
pay rentals are recognised. The only exceptions are short-term leases and low value [eases.

= Annual improvements to IFRS Standards 2015 -2017.

= IFRIC 23 in respect of Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments: IFRIC 23 provides guidance in determining how tax
= Amendments to IAS 19: Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement.

« Amendments to |IAS 28: Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures.

2.4  Srandards and interpretations issued and not yet effective

Certain new accounting standards and interpretations have been published that are not mandatory for 31 December 2019
reporting periods and have not been early adopted by the group. These standards are not expected to have a material impact
on the entity in the current or future reporting periods and on foreseeable future transactions.

2.5 Measurement Convention
The financial statements are prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain non-current assets and financial
instruments that are measured at revalued amounts or fair values, as explained in the accounting policies below.

2.6 Investments

investments in subsidiaries

The value of the investment in each subsidiary held by the Company is recorded at cost less any impairment in the
Company's balance sheet.

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Company has significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor an interest in a
joint venture. Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but
is not control or jeint control over those policies. The investment in an associate is initially recognised at cost and adjusted for
the Company's share of in the net assets of the investee after the date of acquisition, and for any impairment in value (equity
method), except when the investment is classified as held-for-sale in accordance with IFRS 5 Non-current assets held-for-sale
and discontinued operations. The Company recognises losses to the extent there is a legal or constructive obligation in
retation to those losses.
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2.7  Foreign currencies

Foreign currencies fransactions

Exchange differences are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise, except for:

- exchange differences on foreign currency borrowings which are regarded as adjustments to interest costs, where those
interest costs qualify for capitalisation to assets under construction;

- exchange differences on loans to or from a foreign operation for which settlement is neither planned nor likely to occur and
therefore forms part of the net investment in the foreign operation, which are recognised initially in other comprehensive
income and reclassified from equity to profit or loss en disposal or partial disposal of the net investment.

2.8  Financial instruments

The Group classifies financial instruments, or their component parts, on initial recognition &s a financial asset, a financial
liability or an equity instrument in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangement. Financial instruments are
recognised when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

2.8.1 Financial assets
Financial assets comprise cash and cash equivalents and trade and other receivabies.

Trade receivables are initially recognised when they are originated and are initialiy measured at fair value where there is a
significant financing component. Trade receivables without a significant financing component is initially measured at the
transaction price.

Trade receivables are subsequently measured at amortised cast as they meets both of the following conditions:

- they are held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows; and

- their contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

Trade receivables are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method, less provision for
impairment using the expected credit loss approach.

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected credit iosses (ECLs) on trade receivables using the simplified expected
credit loss model which is measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECL.

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition untess the Group changes its business model for
managing financial assets in which case all affected financial assets are reclassified on the first day of the first reporting
period following the change in the business model.

Foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is
recognised in profit or loss.
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2.8 Financial instruments (policy applicable from 25 February 2018) (continued)

2.8.1 Financial assets (continued)

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition and when
estimating ECL, the Group considers reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and available without undue
cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based con the Group's historical
experience and informed credit assessment and including forward-looking information.

The company assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly if it is more than 30 days past due.
The company considers a financial asset to be in default when the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the
campany in full, without recourse by the company to actions such as realising security (if any is held) or the financial asset is
more than 80 days past due.

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the present value of all cash
shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the entity in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that
the company expects to receive). ECLs are discounted at the effective interest rate of the financial asset. At each reporting
date, the company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost are credit-impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit-
impaired’ when one aor maore events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset
have occurred. The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the extent that there is
no realistic prospect of recovery.

2.8.2 Financial liabilities (other than derivative financial instruments)

Financial liabiliies comprise loans and borrowings and trade and other payables. Financial liabilities are initially recognised
when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition ar
issue. Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense
and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecegnition is also recognised
in profit or loss.

2.8.3 Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the value of proceeds received, net of costs directly attributable to
the issue of the instruments.

Financial instruments issued by the company are treated as equity only to the extent that they meet the fallowing two
conditions:

a. they include na contractual obligations upon the group to deliver cash or other financial assets or to exchange financial
assets or financial liabilities with another party under conditions that are potentially unfavourable to the group; and

b. where the instrument will or may be settled in the company’s own equity instruments, it is either a nan-derivative that
includes no obligation to deliver a variable nurmber of the company's own equity instruments or is a derivative that will be
settled by the company's exchanging a fixed amount of cash or other financial assets for a fixed number of its own equity
instruments.

To the extent that this definition is not met, the proceeds of issue are classified as a financial liability. Where the instrument so
classified takes the legal form of the company’s own shares, the amounts presented in these financial statements for called
up share capital exclude amounts in relation to those shares.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax,
from the proceeds. Where any group company purchases the company's equity instruments, for example as a result of share
buy-back, the consideration paid, including any directly incremental costs (net of taxes) is deducted from equity attributable to
the owners of the Company as treasury shares until such time that the shares are cancelled or reissued.
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2.8 Financial instruments

The Company classifies financial instruments, or their component parts, on initiat recognition as a financial asset, a financial
fiabifity or an equity instrument in accordance with the substance of the contractuai arrangement. Financial instruments are
recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

The Company classifies its financial assets and liabilities in the following categories:
« Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss;
+ Loans and receivables;
+ Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss;
» Other financial liabilities.

Non derivative financial instruments
2.8.4 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash equivalents comprise short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. An investment with a maturity of three months or less is normally
classified as being short-term. Bank cverdrafts are shown within borrowing in current liabilities.

2.8.5 Trade receivables

Trade receivables are measured at initiai recognition at fair value, and are subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest rate method, less provision for impairment.

Trade receivables that are known to be uncollectible are written off by reducing the carrying amount directly. The other
receivables are assessed collectively to determine whether there is objective evidence that an impairment has been incurred
but not yet been identified. For these receivables appropriate allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts is recognised.
The Company considers that there is evidence of impairment if any of the following indicators are present:

= Significant financial difficulties of the debtor
« Probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial recrganisation
* Default or delinquency in payments

Interest on overdue trade receivables is recognised as it accrues.

2.8.6 Trade payables

Trade payables are measured at fair value, and are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method.

2.8.7 Bank overdrafts and interest-bearing borrowings

Bank overdrafts and interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred, and are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments through the expected life of the financial
liability.

Certain borrowings of the Company are deep-discounted bonds upon which no periodic interest is payable. Such borrowings
are accounted for at amortised cost using the effective interest rate of the bond over its life.

2.8.8 Non interest-bearing loans and borrowings

Non-interest loans are recognised initially at fair value and are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

79



Nando's Group Holdings Limited
Annual report and statutory consclidated financial statements
23 February 2020

2 Summary of significant accounting policies {continued)
2.8 Financial instruments (policy applicable prior to 25 February 2018) (continued)

2.8.9 Inter-group financial instruments

Where the company enters into financial guarantee contracts to guarantee the indebtedness of other companies within its
group, the company considers these to be insurance arrangements and accounts for them as such. In this respect the
company treats the guarantee contract as a contingent liability unti! such time as it becomes probable that the company will
be required to make a payment under the guarantee.

2.8.10 Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the value of proceeds received, net of costs directly attributable to
the issue of the instruments.

2.8.1t1 Impairment of financial assets

All financial assets measured at amortised cost are assessed for indicators of impairment at each reporting date. These
impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss, unless the financial asset is measured at fair value and the fair value
adjustments are recognised in other comprehensive income, in which case the impairment is recognised in other
comprehensive income to the extent that fair value adjustments exist. Any excess is recognised in profit or loss.

2.9  Borrowing costs

The company does not construct material qualifying assets and therefore berrowing costs are expensed in the period
they are incurred.

210 Taxation

Tax on profit or loss for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Current and deferred tax is recognised in the
income statement, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Income tax for the period is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the
reporting period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax is provided on temparary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial
reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes.

The amount of deferred tax provided is based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying
amount of assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

The Company does not recognise deferred tax liabilities, or deferred tax assets, on temporary differences associated
with: the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit other than in a
business combination, and differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that they will probably not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

A deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised. The carrying amount of the deferred tax assets are reviewed at each statement
of financial position date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow ail or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets
and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same tax authority. Current tax assets and liabilities are
offset where the entity has a legal enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
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2.11  Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses annually whether there is any indication that any of its assets have been impaired, other than inventories
and deferred tax assets. If such indication exists, the asset's recoverable amount is estimated and compared to its carrying
value. Where it is impossible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the smallest cash generating unit to which the asset is allocated.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, an impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit ar loss, unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the impairment
loss is recognised as revaluation decrease.

The recaoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the greater of its value in use and its fair vaiue less costs to
sell In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. For the purpose
of impairment testing, assets that cannot be tested individually are grouped tegether into the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or groups of
assets (the "cash-generating unit”).

Impairment losses recognised in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any indications that the loss has
decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine
the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been
recognised.

2.12 Share based payment policy

Share-based payment arrangements in which the Company receives goods or services as consideration for its own equity
instruments are accounted for as equity-settled share-based payment transactions, regardless of how the equity instruments
are obtained by the Company. Share-based payment transactions in which the Company receives goods or services by
incumming a liability to transfer cash or other assets that is based on the price of the Company's equity instruments are
accounted for as cash-settled share-based payments. All current arrangements are equity-settled arrangements.

For the equity-settled schemes, the fair value of a share plan is recognised as an expense over the expected vesting period
with a corresponding entry to retained earnings. The fair value of the share plans is determined at the date of grant. Non-
market based vesting conditions (i.e. Group profitability targets) are taken into account in estimating the number of awards
likely to vest, which is reviewed at each accounting date up to the vesting date, at which point the estimate is adjusted to
reflect the actual awards issued. No adjustment for past service is made during the vesting date even if the options are
forfeited, or are not exercised. For share-based payment awards with non-vesting conditions, the grant date fair value of the
share-based payment is measured to reflect such conditions and there is no true-up for differences between expected and
actual outcomes.

The fair value of the share plan is measured using the Monte Carlo method.
Where the Company grants options over its own shares to the employees of its subsidiaries it recognises, in its individual

financial statements, an increase in the cost of investment in its subsidiaries eguivalent to the equity-settled share-based
payment charge recognised in its consolidated financial statements with the corresponding credit being recognised directly in

equity.
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Accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of the company's financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilites, and the accompanying
profit or lass.

The estimates and judgements that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial period are as follows:

Key sources of estimation unceriainty

In the process of applying the company’'s accounting policies, management has made various estimates. Management
do not consider that any of these estimates have a significant effect on the consolidated financial statements. The key
area of estimation that has the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements is the
review for the impairment of investment carrying values.

Critical judgements in applying the Company's accounting policies

In the process of applying the Company's accounting policies, management has made various judgements. Those
which management has assessed to have the most significant effect on the amounts recegnised in the financial
statements have been discussed in the individual notes of the related financial statement line items. While subject to
some degree of judgement, this is not significant.

Disclosure for new accounting standards effective during the current period

IFRS 16 Leases is the new accounting standards that is effective for the period ended 23 February 2020. Adoption of
this new standard had no impact on the Company. There are no other new standards, amendments or interpretations,
effective for the first time for the period ending 23 February 2020 that had a material impact on the Company.
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4 Directors' remuneration

2020 2019
£'000s £'000s
Directors' remuneration (2,158) (593)

The aggregate of remuneration and amounts receivable under long term incentive schemes of the highest paid director was £693k (2019: £328k),
and pension contributions of £1k (2019: £Nil) were made on the Director's behalf.

The directors' remuneration consists of 5 directors (2019: 2 directors) providing services to the Group.

5 Investments In subsidiaries and associates

8.1 Investments in subsidiaries 2020 2019
£'000s £'000s

Balance at the beginning of the period 263,543 265,547
Additional capital contribution during the period 30,676 28,524
Share based payment contributions during the year (48} 1,667
Impairment (88.508) (32,195)
Balance as the end of the period 205,665 263,543

The Company made additional capital contributions within the year, which related to investments rmade within the Australia, New Zealand, Canada,
United States and India markets.

The Company assesses the carrying value of its investments at each reporting date to determine whether this is objective avidence of impairment.
An impairment analysis has been performed across the individual investment values using a discounted cash flow methodology.

The result of this impairment review of the Company investment in subsidiaries require an impairment loss. The impairment loss of £88.5m
(2019:£32.2m) is a result of our assessment of the medium term returns for the US, Canada, India and New Zealand markets that can be
generated from our assets in those markets. The impairment losses are due to the expected impact from Covid-19, with some restaurants
permanently closing in Canada after the period end as a result of the pandemic. The recoverable amount in US, Canada, India and New Zealand
has been calculated using the VIU methodology.

A number of assumptions have been utilised in calculating these cash flows, including sales growth projections, budgeted gross margins, direct and
indirect cost growth rates and expected capital expenditure levels. In line with IFRS requirements, capital and non capital expenditure relating to
maintaining the assets in their current condition has been included whereas forecast capex for enhancing assets and new restaurant openings has
been excluded along with the incremental cash flows that such enhancements wouid be expected to generate. Similarly, where current costs
exclusively relate to the future openings of new restaurants, these have been excluded from the value in use calculation.

A summary of the key assumptions used in the VIU calculation are given below:-

us Canada India New Zealand
Long-term growth rate 2.0% 2.1% 3.9% 2.1%
WACC Discount rates (pre tax) 9.5% 8.9% 15.4% 10.3%
Subsidiary undertaking Registered Address Ownership Country of |Class of Principat activity
2020 2015 |Incorporation|Shares Held
Nando's Group Limited St Mary's House, 42 100% 100% UK Ordinary Holding company

Vicarage Crescent,
London, SW11 3LD
MNando's Chickenland Limited  |St Mary's House, 42 99.7% 99.7% |UK Crdinary Casual Dining Restaurants
Vicarage Crescent,
London, SW11 3LD
Nando's Limited St Mary's House, 42 100% 100% UK Ordinary Management, IP company & Franchisor
Vicarage Crescent,
London, SW11 3LD

Nando's Restaurant Group St Mary's House, 42 100% 100% UK Ordinary Holding company
Holdings Limited Vicarage Crescent,
London, SW11 3LD
Nando's Australia Pty Limited {40 Mollison Street, 100% 100% [Australia Ordinary Casual Dining Restaurants
Abbotsford , 3067
Nando’s Chickenland Canada {5865 Kennedy Road, 100% 100% |Canada Ordinary Holding company
Ing Mississauga, ON,
L4Z 2G3
Nando's Grocery Intemational  {St Mary's House, 42 100% 100% (UK Ordinary Retail food products
Limited Vicarage Crescent,
London, SW11 3LD
Nando's Services (Ply) Limited | 10A Victoria Road, 100% 100% [South Africa  |Ordinary Management company
Lorentzville,

Johannesburg, 2094
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Subsidiary undertaking Registered Address Ownership Country of [Class of Principal activity
2020 2018 |Incorporation|Shares Held
Nando's New Zealand Limited |Franchise 100% 100% {New Zealand |Ordinary Casual Dining Restaurants
Accountants, 2g
Amera Place‘
Auckland, 2013 , New
Zealand
Nando's Sub Continent St Mary's House, 42 100% 100% (UK Ordinary Holding company
Holdings Limited Vicarage Crescen,
London, SW11 3LD
Nando's Services Limited S5t Mary's House, 42 100% 100% |UK Ordinary Management company
Vicarage Crescent,
London, SW11 3LD
Investment in equity accounted investees
2020 2019
£'000s £'000s
Balance at the beginning of the period 22,349 20914
Additional capital contribution during the period 30t 2,370
Share of (loss) {1,108) (935)
Impairment {1,800) -
Balance as the end of the period 19,844 22,349
Investments Registered Address Ownership Country of Class of Principat activity
2020 2019 |Incorporation|Shares Held
Nando's Services india Private |Flat 10, 1105-11086, 5% 5% |india Ordinary Casual Dining Restaurants
Limited Ashoka Estate, New
Dedhi - 110001
Nando's Karnataka G9/10, Ascendas 5% 5% India Ordinary Casual Dining Restaurants
Restaurants Private Limited Park Square Mall,
ITPL, Whilefield,
Nando's Chickenland Malaysia |Level 8, Symphony 49% 49% |Malaysia Ordinary Casual Dining Restaurants
SDN.BHD House, Block D13,
Pusat Dagangan
Nando's Singapore PTE. 16 Raffles Quay, No. 49% 49% |Singapore Ordinary Casual Dining Restaurants
Limited 11-03 Hong Leong
Building, Singapore,

The investments in Malaysia and Singapore have a different period end of 31 December to the Group due to iocal compliance reasons. There are
no restrictions on the ability of associates to transfer funds to the Group in the form of cash dividends, or to repay loans or advances made by the
entity. The debt of Nando's Chickenland Malaysia has been guaranteed by Nando's Group Holdings Limited. For further details on the impairment in
equity accounted investees, please refer to Note 20 of the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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6 Cash and cash equivaients

2020 2019
£'000s £'000s

Cash and cash equivalents 25155 139,371

7 Debtors
2020 2018
Amounts falling due within one year £'000s £'000s
Loans due from inter-group undertakings 71,643 88,753
Debtors due from inter-group undertakings 4465 5,696
Other debtors 13 34
Prepayments 1 1
76,122 84 484
Amcunts falling due more than one year

Loans due from intergroup undertakings (interest 8.50%) 168,457 158,285
168,457 158,285

The debtors balance due within one year relates to carried forward group relief of £4 465k (2019: £5,696k) with Nando's Chickenland Limited.
Included within foans due from inter-group undertakings is £34,970k (2019: £34,304k ) due from The Nando's Chickenland Canrada Inc which is
repayable in 2020. In the period an interest waiver was agreed, therefore the accumulated interest accrued at 2.5% of £3,301k has been reversed,
resulting in a credit in the current period. The remainder of the loans with the Company's subsidiaries, being £62.47 1k (2019: £54,449k), bear no
interest, are repayable on demand and are unsecured. Provisions of £25,800k (2019: £0k) were held against the loans due from inter-group
undertakings.

Amounts owed from Group undertakings due more than one year are due from Nando’s Limited, upon which interest is charged at 8.5%. The
amount of interest accrued for the period is £10,172k (2019: £10,172k). This loan facility is repayable in 2022 and is unsecured. Included in the
carrying value of total inter-group loans is accrued interest receivable of £50,910k (2019: £40,738k).

The below table summarises the movement on group undertakings:

Loans to Other Total
group
Amounts due from inter-group undertakings undertakings
£'000s £'000s £'000s
Cost and Net boock value
As at 24 February 2019 247038 5,696 252,734
Additions 16,627 - 16,627
Interest Accrued 10,172 - 10172
Provision against intercompany loans (25,800 - (25.,800)
Repayments (7.937) (1,231) (9,168)
As at 23 February 2020 240,100 4,465 244,565
8 Creditors
2020 2018
Current £'000s £'000s
Creditors due to third parties (2,565) (317)
Creditors due to inter-group parties (68,373) {67,066)
Loans due to related parties - {125,860)
Non-Current
Loans due to related parties (273,949) (253,372)
{344 ,887) (446,615)

85



Nando's Group Holdings Limited
Annual report and statutory consclidated financial statements
23 February 2020

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
8 Creditors (continued)

The loans due to related parties and inter-group undertakings are interest bearing loans and borrowings which are surmmarised in the table of terms
and conditions below:

Nominal
Year of interest Carrying
Currency maturity rate Face value amount Face value Carrying amount

2020 2020 2019 2019

Inter-group loans £'000s £'000s £'000s £'000s
On 2.5%+

Nando’s Group Limited GBP demand LIBOR 58,782 68,373 58,782 B67.066
Related Party loans
Yellowwoods Treasury 2
SARL GBP 2019 7.50% - - 95,615 125,860
Yellowwoods Treasury 2
SARL GBP 2022 8.00% 120,000 173,008 120,000 160,277
Yellowwoods Treasury 2
SARL GBP 2024 8.25% 46,106 65,343 46,106 60,363
Yellowwoods Treasury 2
SARL GBP 2027 8.50% 26,000 35,508 26,000 32,732

250,888 342,322 346,503 446,298

This note provides information about the contractual terms of the Company's interest bearing loans and borrowings, which are measured at
amortised cost. Face value of debt represents amounts initially borrowed, while the carrying value of debt includes accrued interest where the
terms of the instrument require repayment of interest at the end of the loan term plus any amortised upfront costs of the loan.

9 Share Capital

2020 2018
£'000s £'000s
Authorised Share Capital
50,000,000 {2018: 180,000,000) ordinary shares of £3.60 (2019: £1) each 180,000 180,000
10,777,537 (20119: 10,777 ,537) ordinary B shares of £0.001 each 11 11
180,011 180,011
Issued and Ffully paid for
50,000,000 {2018: 180,000,000) ordinary shares of £3.60 (2019: £1) each 180,000 180,000
10,240,694 {(2019:10 240 984) ordinary B shares of £0.001 each 10 10
180,010 180,010
Reconcitiation of the number of shares outstanding
Opening balance at beginning of the cusrent period 180,010 50,010
Share consolidation of 130,000,000 shares {2019: nil) (130,000) -
Shares issued nil 2019: 130,000,000) - 130,000
Closing balance at end of current period 50,010 180,010

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share at meetings of
the Company.

Ordinary B shares are held by employees under share based scheme. The holders of ordinary B shares are not entitled to receive any income or
capital until the hurdle amount per share has been reached in respect of that ordinary B Share, the detail relating to the hurdle amount is detailed in
the Group accounts. The transfer of these shares is at the discretion of the Directors of the Company.

During the year, no shares were issued.
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10 Share based payments

The company has formed an employee share scheme during the prior year which is designed to remunerate the employees of the Group with
shares in the Company.

The Group Partnership scheme is deemed to be equity settled, therefore the fair value of amounts payable to the employees is recognised as an
expense in the employing company with a corresponding increase in equity to represent the contribution received.

Under the employee share scheme the employees hold the shares immediately on award, but there is a designated compulsory holding period
running from November 2016 to November 2020, during which employees waive their voting and dividend rights in respect of their shares and may
not transfer, charge or otherwise dispose of their shares without consent of the Company. The shares granted to employees under the scheme
shall vest under performance related criteria as well as individual personal targets; if they do not vest, then they are returned to the Company.

The company retains the beneficial rights to the unvested shares held by employees. As the shares are not publicly traded and therefore cannot be

easily realised, a separate arrangement has been put into place between the employees and a related undertaking Yellowwoods SARL, which will
acquire the shares after vesting under a put and call. The acquisition of the shares by Yellowwoods SARL will be settled in cash.

Shares in issue to the employees of Nando's Group Holdings Limited's subsidiaries:

2020 2018

Shares at beginning of the period Shares Shares

B1 shares issued during the period 10,240,964 10,240,964
B2 shares issued during the period - -
B3 shares issued during the period - -
Qutstanding shares at end of the period - -

10,240,964 10,240,964

Measurement of fair values

The fair value of the B Shares has been measured using the Monte Carlo valuation model. Service and non market perfermance conditions
attached to the arrangements were not taken into account in measuring fair value. The inputs used in the measurement of the fair values at grant
date of the B Shares were as follows:

Grant Date Grant Date
17 January 2018 16 November
Fair value (£) 1.13 1.04
Share price (£) 11.186 10.77
Hurdle (Exercise price) (£) 12.26 12.26
Capped value (average) (£) 16.10 16.10
Expected average exercise date 3.7 years 4.0 years
Expected maximum term 4.7 years 5.0 years
Risk free rate 0.87% 0.54%
Expected volatility 30% 30%
Expense recognised in profif and loss in refation to Group Partnership Scheme.

2020 2018

£'000s £'000s

Share-based payment expense (48) 1,667

Due to the mandatory holding period, ne shares were exercisable at the end of the period. These share based payment schemes have been
recognised in accordance with IFRS 2 and the accounting policy described in 2.12. The shares did vest at the and of year, however the scheme
was closed post batance sheet date. There was no charge to the group given the scheme’s closure.

11 Commitments and contingencies
As per note 19 of the consolidated accounts, Nande's Group Holdings Limited has taken the audit exemption for a number of subsidiaries by virtue
of 3479A of the Companies Act. A Parent Company guarantee has been provided for these entities under s479C of the Companies Act.

12 Related party transactions
Nando's Group Holding’s Limited is a subsidiary of L Perlman SECS which is the ultimate parent and controlling party, incorporated in Luxembourg
and conducts business from 39 avenue Monterey, L-2163, Luxembourg. No consoclidated accounts of this group are available.

The largest group in which the results of the group are consolidated is that headed by Nande's Group Heldirg's Limited. No other group financial
statements include the results of Nando's Group Holding's Limited.

The Group has identified the following related parties, which have been disclosed accordingly.
Yellowwoods Treasury: Yellowwoods Treasury 2 SARL is a related party to the group by virtue of the two parties having common directors.
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12 Related party transactions (continued)
The company have the following significant related party transactions:

Deep Discounted Beonds

The Company have issued deep discounted bonds to Yellowwoods Treasury totalling £273,949k (2019: £379,233k). Included in the carrying value
of the DDB's in note 8 is accrued interest payable of £81 843k (2019: £31 858k ) in the Group. The Company have incurred interest expense on the
deep discounted bonds of £22,408k (2019: £27,847k). The details and terms of the deep discounted bonds are disclosed in note 8.

13 Subsequent events

Loans to Subsidiaries

Subsequent to the year end, the Company has extended further loans to its subsidiaries. The total value of the significant loans which have been
extended to subsidiaries is £28,695k up to the date of approval of these financial statements. This increase in loans receivabie is a non-adjusting
event after the balance sheet date.

Capital Contributions to Subsidiaries

Subsequent to the year end, the Company has contributed capital te its subsidisiaries. The tefal value of the capital contributions extended to the
subsidiaries is £6,1680k up to the date of approval of these financial statements. This increase in capital is a non-adjusting event after the balance
sheet date.

Share issue
In September 2020, the Group secured additional funding from its sharehoiders by raising £100 rmillion in new equity from its immediate parent.
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